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ABSTRAKT

Tato bakalaiska prace se zabyva finan¢ni analyzou vybraného podniku v letech 2016-2019.
Cilem této prace je provést finan¢ni analyzu na zéklad¢ dostupnych informaci, nasledné
zhodnotit stabilitu podniku a navrhnout doporuceni pro zlepsSeni finan¢ni situace. Prace se
déli na teoretickou a praktickou ¢ast. V teoretické ¢asti jsou popsany zakladni informace
o finan¢ni analyze, jako naptiklad uzivatelé financ¢ni analyzy, zdroje informaci pro financni
analyzu a metody finan¢ni analyzy, které jsou poté vyuzity v dalsi ¢asti. V praktické casti je
jako prvni stru¢né popsan podnik, ve kterém je analyza provadéna. Poté je zde vypracovana
finan¢ni analyza pomoci metod, které jsou popsany v teoretické ¢asti. Mezi tyto metody patii
napiiklad absolutni, pomérové a rozdilové ukazatele. Na zavér je na zékladé provedené
analyzy zhodnocena stabilita podniku a jsou zde navrzena doporuceni pro mozné zlepSeni

finanéni situace.

Kli¢ovéa slova: financni analyza, absolutni ukazatele, pomérové ukazatele, rozdilové

ukazatele, Gcetni vykazy

ABSTRACT

This bachelor’s thesis deals with a financial analysis of the selected company in 2016-2019.
The goal of this thesis is to make a financial analysis based on available information, then
evaluate the stability of the selected company, and also propound recommendations leading
to the improvement of the financial situation. This thesis is divided into a theoretical and
practical part. In the theoretical part, there is described basic information about financial
analysis, for example, users of financial analysis, sources of information for financial
analysis, and methods of financial analysis, which are later used in the next part. In the
practical part, there is first briefly described the company in which the analysis is made.
Then there is completed financial analysis by methods that are described in the theoretical
part. Among these methods belong, for example, absolute, ratio, and subtractive indicators.
In conclusion, there is according to the analysis evaluated the stability of the company, and
there are also propounded recommendations for possible improvement of the company’s

financial situation.

Keywords: financial analysis, absolute indicators, ratio indicators, subtractive indicators,

financial statements
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INTRODUCTION

The success of a company in the contemporary, highly competitive economic environment
depends, among other things, on how well it knows its financial situation. Financial analysis
is a widely used method to explore the financial situation of a company. By choosing the
proper methods and the right interpretation of results, a company can reveal its strengths and
weaknesses and make future plans.

The goal of this bachelor’s thesis is to make a financial analysis of the selected company
in the period 20162019, interpret the results, and also propose recommendations on how to
possibly improve the financial situation of the company.

This thesis is divided into two parts. The first part is theoretical. It deals with basic
information about financial analysis and its main objectives, the description of users of
financial analysis, and also with listing sources of information where belong mainly financial
statements. There are also described methods of financial analysis that are later used in the
practical part. The information about the company is taken from the company’s annual
reports that are publicly available on the internet. The last section of the theoretical part
introduces limitations of financial analysis.

In the practical part, there is first described the company, and then, according to
knowledge obtained during working on the theoretical part, the analysis is made. There are
used methods that are delineated in the theoretical part. Among the methods belong absolute
indicators (vertical and horizontal analysis), ratio indicators (liquidity, solvency,
profitability, and efficiency ratios), subtractive indicators (net working capital), and
bankruptcy models (Altman Z-Score and index INOS). The results of these indicators are
analysed, and some of them are compared to the industry.

In the end, the overall performance of the company is evaluated, and some

recommendations are proposed.
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1 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Financial analysis is a needful part of the company’s financial management. This chapter

describes the basic information about financial analysis.

1.1 Objectives of financial analysis

The main objective of financial analysis is to assess the financial situation of a company by
analysing financial statements and other sources. Results of financial analysis show, for
example, a company’s profitability, usage of assets, capital structure, and solvency. It is
crucial for managers to know the financial situation of the company when determining the
optimal financial structure, when allocating free funds, to make the right decisions when
obtaining financial resources, and other operations. Financial analysis is important to

evaluate the past and also to forecast future development. (Kndpkova et al. 2017, 17)

1.2 Users of financial analysis
Information about the financial situation of the company is important for internal and
external users who are in contact with the company. This group of users includes many

subjects, the main intention of whom is to know the information to control and make

decisions. (Holeckova 2008, 13)

1.2.1 External users
External users use financial information to assess the financial credibility of the company.
Among external users belong, for example, investors, banks and other creditors, business

partners, government, or competition. (Holeckova 2008, 13)

Investors

Investors belong among the primary users of financial information of the company. This
group includes shareholders and owners whose capital is invested in the company. Investors
use financial information first to decide whether to invest in the company, and then they use
it to control. The usage of information to decide about future investment is called the
investments aspect. Investors focus mainly on the level of risk and rate of return on invested
capital. The control aspect is used to monitor the company’s stability, liquidity, profit, and
future view. Investors usually control annual financial statement reports. (Holeckova 2008,

14)
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Banks and other lenders

Lenders are interested mainly in the solvency of the company. Solvency is the ability to pay
back the loans and interests on time. They focus on the performance of the company, mainly
on profitability and liquidity. (Luca 2008, 52—53)

Lenders need to know as much information as possible about the company to decide

whether to grant a loan, in what amount and under what conditions. (Hole¢kova 2008, 15)

Business partners

Among business partners belong for example suppliers and customers. Suppliers focus
mainly on short-term prosperity because they need to know if the debtor company will be
able to pay its liabilities. Customers want to know the company’s financial situation mainly
in a long-term business relationship to make sure that they will be able to secure production
in case of financial or other problems. (Holeckova 2008, 16)

Suppliers analyse the solvency of the company, future development, and other
information. Customers also need to know as much information as possible to assess the
prosperity of the company. They focus on information about prices, sales, and other benefits

related to the costs. (Luca 2008, 53)

Government and its agencies

There are many reasons why the government and its agencies are interested in the financial
information of the company. For instance, to control the fulfilment of tax obligations, to
distribute financial assistance, for statistics, and other reasons. (HoleCkova 2008, 17)

In addition to the role of users of information from financial statements, the government
and its agencies have also the role of regulating accounting. They determine, for example,

what information should be included in the financial statements. (Luca 2008, 53)

Competition

Companies are interested in the financial information of their competitors to compare their
performance. They compare mainly pricing policy, profitability, profit margin, and other
aspects. The company needs to provide external subjects with financial information to have

a good reputation and competitiveness. (Holeckova 2008, 16)
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1.2.2 Internal users
Among the most common internal users of financial information belong managers and

employees. (Holeckova 2008, 14)

Managers

The group of managers includes people who are responsible for the achievement of
enterprise objectives. In a small company, this group can also involve business owners.
Managers have full access to information about the company. They need to know a lot to
manage the company. Managers focus on two main objectives that are liquidity and
profitability. (Luca 2008, 49-50)

Financial information helps them to know the feedback on their decisions and their
consequences. Knowledge of the company’s financial situation helps them to make the right
decision when ensuring financial resources and optimal property structure, when distributing

their profit, and during other operations. (Holeckova 2008, 16—17)

Employees

Employees need to know some information on the future view of the company, for example,
to have job security. They focus mainly on the profitability and stability of the company.
According to this information, they can try to negotiate the increase of wages or improving

working conditions. (Luca 2008, 51-52)
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2 SOURCES OF INFORMATION FOR FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

It is essential to use quality and complex information to make financial analysis successful.
Financial statements are the most commonly used data that provide information to a wide
range of users. External financial statements are publicly available. Internal financial
statements can be used to make the results of financial analysis more accurate, because they

are compiled more often, and they are also more detailed. (Ruckova 2019, 21)

2.1 Financial statements

Financial statements provide information about the performance of the company. It is very
important, mainly for managers, to know the company’s financial position and the success
of its operations to make future decisions. But financial statements provide information also
to a wide range of other users. (Higgins 2015, 3)

There are four basic financial statements: balance sheet, income statement, cash flow
statement, and statement of shareholders’ equity. The balance sheet presents the financial
position. There is information about the assets and liabilities of the company on a particular
date. The income statement shows the results of operations. Information, for instance, about
revenues, costs, net loss or profit from the accounting period can be found there. The cash
flow statement presents information about the cash outflows and inflows from financing,
operating, and investing activities. The statement of shareholders’ equity shows the
difference between the beginning and ending balances of every equity item. (Fraser 2016,

24)

2.1.1 Balance sheet statement

The balance sheet shows categories and amounts of assets, liabilities, and owner’s equity of
the company. It is also called the statement of financial condition, or statement of financial
position. This statement is compiled on a particular date (at the end of an accounting period),
and it must always balance. It means that the liabilities and owner’s equity must match the

value of total assets. (Helfert 2001, 38)

Assets
Assets represent the property of the company. There belong fixed assets, current assets, and
other assets. They are segregated according to how they are utilized, or according to their
liquidity. Liquidity is the ability of assets to convert into cash.

Fixed assets are used longer than one year, and they are not used all at once but usually

in the form of depreciation. Fixed assets are divided into three groups: tangible fixed assets,
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intangible fixed assets, and long-term financial assets. Among tangible fixed assets belong,
for example, land, buildings, and machinery. This group of assets is usually depreciated. On
the other hand, intangible fixed assets include, for instance, software, know-how, and
licence. Long-term financial assets contain bonds, shares, and term deposits with a maturity
of more than one year. (Knépkova et al. 2017, 25-30)

Current assets are items that turn over within one year. There belong, for example, cash,
inventories, receivables, and marketable securities. Other assets represent accrued assets (for
instance prepaid rent). (Fabozzi and Peterson 2003, 128—129)

Liabilities

Liabilities represent sources of property financing. This part of the balance sheet is divided
into equity, liabilities, and other liabilities. Equity includes, for instance, registered capital,
capital funds, funds from profit, net profit or loss from the previous years, and net profit or
loss of the current period. Liabilities (external resources) represent the debts of the company.
Examples are provisions and payables (which can be short-term or long-term). Among the

group of other liabilities belong accrued liabilities. (Rackova 2019, 27-28)

2.1.2 Income statement

The income statement shows the overview of costs, revenues, and profit or loss of the
accounting period (usually one year). It presents how the items of the income statement
affected the profit or loss of the accounting period. This information is important to assess
the profitability of the company. There are several types of profit or loss: operating profit or
loss, loss or profit from financial operations, profit or loss before tax, profit or loss after tax,
and profit or loss of the accounting period. Operating profit or loss is important because it
shows whether the company is able to create profit from its core business operations. The
income statement indicates only costs and revenues, but not real cash flows (incomes and
expenses). It means that the income statement does not present real money earned during a
period. That is the reason why it is important to create a cash flow statement. (Rickova 2019,
32-34)

To define earnings, some terms need to be described. Net income (also called net profit)
equals total revenues less total costs. Net income is also called EAT, which means earnings
after taxes. Operating income is profit gained from everyday operations, excluding taxes,
expenses, and interest income. It is also sometimes called EBIT, which means earnings
before interest and taxes. But operating income can differ from EBIT. EBIT is used to

measure income before it is divided among owners, creditors, and government. EBT means
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earnings before taxes. EBITDA stands for earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and
amortization. These different levels of earnings are later used in the calculation of various

indicators. (Higgins 2015, 16)

2.1.3 Cash flow statement

Whereas the balance sheet shows amounts at the end of the accounting period, the cash flow
statement presents changes in the balance sheet accounts during the period. The cash flow
statement shows inflows and outflows of cash during an accounting period. This statement
is divided into three groups: operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities.
(Fraser 2016, 179)

Operating activities should be the core of the business. There belong basic activities the
company does. For example, change of liabilities and receivables, or change of inventory.
Among investing activities belong, for instance, acquisition sale of fixed assets. Financing
activities include changes in equity or long-term liabilities. (Fabozzi and Peterson 2003,

139-141)

2.1.4 Statement of shareholders’ equity

The statement of shareholders’ equity provides information about changes in the
shareholders’ equity during a specific period. It shows how the items of equity decreased or
increased during the accounting period. There belong, for example, increase or decrease in
registered capital, payment of dividends to shareholders, allocation of profit into funds, et

cetera. (Helfert 2001, 46)

2.1.5 Notes to the financial statements

Notes to the financial statements also include a large amount of important information. This
statement is created to understand other statements fully. Notes to the financial statements
include, for example, information about the company and its accounting policies. There is
written how inventories and fixed assets are valued, foreign currency translation methods,
depreciation methods, or average recalculated number of employees. (Knapkova et al. 2017,

63)
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3 METHODS OF FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

There are many methods of financial analysis, but the most popular are absolute indicators,
ratio indicators, and subtractive indicators. Other methods include, for example, bankruptcy

and creditworthiness models. All of these are described more in detail below.

3.1 Absolute indicators

Absolute indicators assess individual items of financial statements. This analysis is used to
compare financial information over a period. Among absolute indicators belong vertical and

horizontal analysis.

3.1.1 Vertical analysis

Vertical analysis evaluates individual items of the financial statements. Every item is listed
as a percentage of a base figure (= 100%). A base figure for the income statement is usually
the amount of revenues or costs. In the balance sheet, it is the value of assets or liabilities.
This analysis is called vertical because the items are assessed in individual years vertically
(in columns). Vertical analysis is used to compare financial statements from different years

(development over time), and also to compare companies. (Sedlac¢ek 2007, 17)

Vertical analysis formula (%) = statement line ltem o 100

total base figure

3.1.2 Horizontal analysis

Horizontal analysis (also known as trend analysis) compares the items of the financial
statements with the same items from the previous years. It compares a line item with the
same line item but in a different period (usually different year). The earliest year represents
the base year. This analysis also monitors the percentage change of the items. These changes
are tracked horizontally (line by line). The change can be absolute or relative. Horizontal
analysis shows development trends in the assets and liabilities structure, in revenues and
costs. (Sedlacek 2007, 13-15)

Horizontal analysis formulas:

absolute = amount in comparison year — amount in base year

. amount in comparison year — amount in base year
relative (%) = x 100

amount in base year
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3.2 Ratio indicators

Ratio indicators show through ratio the relation between two or more absolute indicators. It
presents how various items of financial statements relate to one another. Ratio indicators are
widespread and popular methods of financial analysis. There can be compared ratios of a
company over several years, ratios of a company and other company, or ratios to some

absolute benchmark. (Palepu and Healy 2012, chapter 5-1)

3.2.1 Liquidity ratios

Liquidity shows whether the company is able to pay its short-term obligations. Liquidity is
connected to solvency. A company must be liquid to be solvent. Solvency is the ability to
pay obligations in the long-term. It is important for the company to be liquid, but on the other
hand, too high rate of liquidity is not reasonable, because too many funds are bounded in
assets that do not appreciate financial funds a lot. That is why balanced liquidity should be
found. The general form of liquidity ratios is the proportion of various assets to what must
be paid. (Ruckova 2019, 57-58)

There are three commonly used indicators: current ratio, quick ratio, and cash ratio.

Current ratio

Current ratio shows how many times current assets cover short-term payables. Simply put,
this indicator shows how the company would be able to pay its obligations if it transformed
all the current assets into cash. The result of current ratio should be between 1.5-2.5.

(Riackova 2019, 59)

current assets

Current ratio formula = ——
current liabilities

Quick ratio

Quick ratio (also called acid test) uses only a part of current assets — cash, accounts
receivables, and marketable securities. It shows how the company is able to pay its short-
term obligations with its most liquid assets. The result of quick ratio should be between 1—

1.5. An ideal ratio is 1:1, but it depends on the type of company. (Sedlacek 2007, 67)

current assets — inventory

Quick ratio formula = —
current liabilities

Cash ratio
Cash ratio shows the company’s ability to pay its short-term obligations only with cash or
cash equivalents (for example short-term marketable securities). The result of cash ratio

should be between 0.2—0.5. (Ruckova 2019, 58)

cash + cash equivalents

Cash ratio formula = —
current liabilies
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3.2.2 Solvency ratios
Solvency ratios show what risk the company undergoes using a particular capital structure.
Every company should attempt for optimal capital structure, it means for an optimal rate
between equity and liabilities. Liabilities are cheaper than equity because liabilities interest
reduces the tax base (this is called a tax shield). There are other perspectives on how to assess
what capital is cheaper. For example, the risk what a creditor undergoes is higher when the
company has a higher proportion of liabilities, because there is a risk that the company will
not be able to pay its debts. In this case, the creditor requires higher interest rates. (Knépkova
etal. 2017, 87)

There are many solvency ratio indicators. For instance, debt ratio, equity ratio, debt to

equity ratio, or interest coverage ratio. These indicators are described more in detail below.

Debt ratio

Debt ratio is a basic indicator of solvency ratios. It shows the degree of coverage of the
company’s assets by liabilities (how many percent of total assets are financed by liabilities).
The optimal value of debt ratio should be between 30—-60%. But it differs, for example
according, to industry. (Knapkova et al. 2017, 88)

Debt ratio formula (%) = fotal Babllitles w100

total assets

Equity ratio

Equity ratio is a complement to debt ratio. The sum of equity ratio and debt ratio should be
1, and they both give information about the capital structure. Equity ratio shows the
company’s financial independence (how many percent of total assets are financed by

equity). Inversed formula represents a tax shield. (Sedlac¢ek 2007, 64)

Equity ratio formula (%) = fotal equity ', 10

total assets

Debt to equity ratio

Debt to equity ratio shows the proportion of equity and liabilities. If the company has many
leasing liabilities, they should be added to the amount of liabilities. This ratio is important

for banks. (Sedlacek 2007, 64)

. . total liabilities
Debt to equity ratio formula = ————
total equity

Interest coverage ratio

Interest coverage presents how many times profit is larger than interest costs. It shows how
the company is able to pay its debts. The optimal value of interest coverage ratio should be

at least 5. (Knapkova et al. 2017, 89-90)

EBIT

Interest coverage ratio formula = —————
interest costs
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3.2.3 Profitability ratios

Profitability is the ability of the company to make a profit by the usage of invested capital.
There are many profitability ratios. These ratios help to assess the overall effectiveness of
the activity. In the numerator, there is always some category of earnings, and in the
denominator, there is some kind of capital or sales. There are three common categories of
profit that are used to calculate profitability ratios. The first one is EBIT (= earnings before
interest and taxes), which is used for intercompany comparison. The second category is EAT
(= earnings after taxes), which is also called net income or net profit. EAT corresponds with
profit or loss of the accounting period. This category is used to assess the company’s
performance. The last category is EBT (= earnings before taxes), which is used to compare
companies with different tax burden. Among the most used profitability ratios belong return

on assets, return on equity, and return on sales. (Rickova 2019, 60-61)

Return on assets (ROA)

Return on assets is used to assess the overall effectiveness. It shows the return on capital no
matter what sources it is funded. (Rackova 2019, 62)

There can be used different categories of profit which have different interpretation. The
most commonly used is EBIT or EAT. EBIT is used to compare companies with different

tax and interest conditions. (Helfert 2001, 112—-113)
EBIT

ROA (%) = ———— x 100

total assets

Return on equity (ROE)

Return on equity shows the profitability of owners’ (for example shareholders’) equity. It is
important for investors that ROE is higher than interest from risk—free securities. The
difference between interest and ROE is called risk premium because the owners take a risk.

Various industries have different satisfactory ROE. (Knapkova et al. 2017, 102—104)

ROE (%) = efj:;y x 100

Return on sales (ROS)

Return on sales presents how the company is able to generate profit from its sales. It
demonstrates how much profit is being produced per crown of sales. There can also be used
different levels of profit, depending on what should be found out or compared. Usually, EAT
or EBIT is used. EAT can be used when calculating profit margin, while EBIT is used to

compare companies. (Rickova 2019, 65-66)

ROS (%) = 2= x 100

sales
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3.2.4 Efficiency ratios

Efficiency ratios (also called activity ratios) measure how efficiently a company manages its
assets to generate revenues. These indicators can be expressed as turnover (number of turns),
or in days (turnover time). (Knapkova et al. 2017, 107)

There are several indicators, some of which are described below.

Total assets turnover ratio

This indicator shows how many times assets are turned over in a specific period (usually one
year). The value of this ratio should be at least 1, but the higher the value, the better.
(Sedlacek 2007, 61)

net sales

Total assets turnover ratio formula = ————
total assets

To show this result in days (how many days it takes assets to turn), the formula is

total assets

following: X 360 (days).

net sales

Inventory turnover ratio

Inventory turnover ratio shows how many times inventory is sold and replaced during a
specific period (usually one year). The higher inventory turnover, the better. (Fabozzi and

Peterson 2003, 739)

. net sales
Inventory turnover ratio formula = ———
inventory

To express this indicator in days (how many days assets are in the form of inventory),

inventory

this formula is used: X 360 (days).

net sales

Accounts receivable turnover ratio

This indicator measures how many days on average it takes for a company to get paid for its
receivables. This value should be compared with invoices due date and with the industry

average. (Knéapkova et al. 2017, 108)

average accounts receivable

Accounts receivable turnover ratio formula = X 360 (days)

net sales

Accounts payable turnover ratio

Accounts payable turnover ratio shows how many days it takes the company to pay its
accounts payable. This period should be longer than accounts receivable turnover ratio so

that the company has enough money to pay its accounts payable. (Sedlac¢ek 2007, 63)

average accounts payable

Accounts payable turnover ratio formula = X 360 (days)

net sales
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3.3 Subtractive indicators
Subtractive indicators are used to analyse the financial situation of a company, mainly its

liquidity. The most commonly used indicator is net working capital (NWC), which is

described below. (Sedlacek 2007, 35)

3.3.1 Net working capital (NWC)
NWOC is the difference between current assets and current liabilities of the company. Current
liabilities have a maturity shorter than one year. This helps to separate the part of current
assets which is there to pay soon current liabilities. The other part of current assets (= NWC)
is understood as a financial fund that is financed by long-term capital (long-term capital
includes equity and long-term liabilities). NWC helps to shows company’s liquidity and
ability to pay its short-term obligations. (Sedlacek 2007, 35)
Net working capital formula = current assets — current liabilities

To find out whether the NWC is big enough, this indicator must be put into proportion

to the current assets. This indicator shows the short-term financial stability of the company.

The ratio of NWC to current assets should be between 30-50%. (Knapkova et al. 2017, 94)

NwWC

The ratio of NWC to current asset formula (%) = ————— X 100
current assets
equity
fixed assets
long-term capital
long-term
NWC I liabilities
current
assets
current liabilities

Figure 1 Net Working Capital (Knapkova et al. 2017, 86)

3.4 Bankruptcy and creditworthiness models

Bankruptcy and creditworthiness models belong among summary indicators of financial
health. These models try to identify the future insolvency of a company. They show present,
but mainly future presumed development of a company. (Kalouda 2016, 70)

The aim of bankruptcy models is to identify whether the company is currently in danger
of bankruptcy. These models are based on the assumption that a company which is in danger

of bankruptcy has problems with return on equity, liquidity, and with the level of net working
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capital. Among bankruptcy models belong, for example, Altman Z-Score and Index IN,
which are described below. (Kndpkova et al. 2017, 132)

Creditworthiness models assess the financial health of a company by assigning a point
evaluation to the individual areas of management. The company is then classified into a
category according to the achieved points. An example is Kralicek Quick Test. (Knapkova
etal. 2017, 132)

The difference between bankruptcy and creditworthiness models is in the purpose for
which they were created, and the data on which they are based. Bankruptcy models are based
on real data, while creditworthiness models are based on theoretical knowledge. (Kalouda

2016, 70)

3.4.1 Altman Z-Score

Altman’s Z-Score model belongs among widely used models to identify whether the
company is in danger of bankruptcy. It is based on the sum of the values of five ratio
indicators to which a certain weight is assigned. The indicators are: profitability, leverage,
liquidity, solvency, and activity. According to the result, companies are ranked in one of
three zones (safe zone, grey zone, and distress zone). The further the company is from the
safe zone, the greater the risk of bankruptcy. There are different models for different types
of companies. (Begovi¢, Mom¢ilovi¢, and Tomasevi¢ 2014, 185-186)

Altman Z-Score formula for companies publicly traded on the stock exchange is following:

Z=1.2X, + 1.4X, + 3.3Xs + 0.6X, + 1X;

__networking capital

where: X; =
total assets
retained earnings
Xy =
total assets
_ EBIT
3 total assets
X, = market value of equity
4 total liabilities
sales
X5 =

" total assets’

If the Z-Score is higher than 2.99, the company is in the safe zone and has a
satisfactory financial situation. If the result is in interval 2.99-1.81, the company is
considered to be in the grey zone where bankruptcy cannot be predicted, and the company
cannot be according to this method clearly evaluated. The company is in the distress zone
when the score is under 1.81. This signals serious problems and a possibility of

bankruptcy. (Ruckova 2019, 81)
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Altman Z-Score formula for other companies (for example limited liability companies, or
companies that are not publicly traded on the stock exchange) is following:
Z=0.717X; + 0.847X, + 3.107X5 + 0.420X, + 0.998X;

where: X1, Xo, X3 and X5 are defined the same as in the previous formula

book value of equity

and X4 =

total liabilities

Interpretation of results is following: if Z-Score is higher than 2.9, the company is in
the safe zone. If the result is in interval 2.9—1.2, the company is considered to be in the
grey zone, and if the score is under 1.2, the company is in the distress zone. (Kalouda

2016, 73)

3.4.2 Index IN
Credibility index IN was created especially for the Czech Republic by Inka and Ivan
Neumaier. The aim of this index is to assess the financial health of Czech companies in the
environment of the Czech Republic. There are four variants: IN95, IN99, INO1, and INOS.
The latest is Index INO5 which is based on the previous models and which formula is below.
(Kalouda 2016, 76)

INO5=0.13xA+0.04xB+397%xC+021XxD+0.09%XE

total assets
where: A=————
liabilities
EBIT
interest expenses

EBIT
total assets
__ Trevenues
B total assets

current assets

short—term liabilities

If INOS is higher than 1.6, the company is considered to have a satisfactory financial
situation. If this index is in interval 1.6—-0.9, the company is in the grey zone. The company
is endangered with serious financial problems if the score is under 0.9. (Sedlacek 2007, 111—

112)
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4 LIMITATIONS OF FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Financial analysis is a useful tool to assess the financial health of a company. But there are
some limitations of financial statements that the users should realize. The main problematic
areas of financial analysis are mainly following: explanatory power of financial statements
and different accounting practises of companies, also the need to compare the results of the
analysis with other subjects, then the impact of unusual events and seasonal factors on the
loss or profit of the company, and last but not least, high dependence on accounting data, or
neglect of risk, future benefits of business activities, and opportunity costs. (Knapkova et al.

2017, 139)

4.1 Explanatory power of financial statements and accounting practises
There are several reasons why the explanatory power of financial statements is not always
high. The main problem is that financial statements do not always present the exact reality
of'the company’s economic activity, and also that there are not the same accounting reporting
rules in different countries which causes the limited possibility of comparison. To partially
mitigate these problems, there are worldwide accounting systems (International Financial
Reporting Standards — IFRS, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United
States — GAAP). Other problems include, for example, the fact that assets in the balance
sheet are derived from historical prices. The time factor is usually also not respected because
some current assets and liabilities are valued at nominal value. Inflation is a big problem
when comparing the financial situation in different periods of time.

Financial statements can also be influenced by different accounting practises of
companies. There belong, for example, depreciation method, creation and drawing of
provisions, or adjusting entries. As the creation of provisions belongs among costs so it
decreases profit, and on the other hand, drawing of provisions increases profit. (Knapkova
etal. 2017, 139-140)

Financial statements are usually fairly useful documents, but users of financial analysis

and a financial analyst should be aware of these limitations.
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II. ANALYSIS
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5 CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SELECTED COMPANY

5.1 Description of the company

The selected company in which the financial analysis is made is a joint-stock company
located in Zlin Region. The main subject of the company’s activity is import, packaging,
distribution, and export of food products and commodities. The commodities include pulses,
rice, pasta, and many others (more than 350 products). The company’s registered capital was
50,050,000 CZK, and the only shareholder is its parent company from abroad. The selected
company was established in 1991 as a family company that was gradually expanding. In
1998 the company was transformed into a joint-stock company and started to promote in
foreign markets. In 2002 it became part of the parent company from abroad with a long
existence that is widespread worldwide. The company has steadily around 150 employees
and nowadays belongs among the most important food industry companies in the Czech
Republic, and also in the south-eastern, central, and eastern Europe. (company’s annual

report)

5.2 Industry classification
The company belongs among food industry companies. According to the Czech Statistical
Classification of Economic Activities in the European Community (CZ-NACE), the selected
company belongs to category 8292 that includes packaging activities. Because this company
mainly imports commodities from abroad and then packs them and sells. It also belongs
among category 1089 — Manufacture of other food products. (internal documents)

For the purpose of this analysis, the company is compared to the industry group
Manufacture of other food products — CZ-NACE 10.8. Information about this industry group
is found on the web page of the Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic.

5.3 Abbreviated forms of the company’s financial statements

Following tables are created based on data from the company’s financial statements, which
are later used to calculate the indicators. The tables contain only the fundamental items of
the financial statements in the years 2016-2019. The complete form of the financial

statements is listed in the appendix.

5.3.1 The balance sheet — assets
The company’s balance sheet total during these years was fluctuating between 315-370

million CZK. The main part of the assets is current assets, mainly inventory and receivables.
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The company had the highest rate of total assets in 2018 because of the increase in fixed
assets since the company invested in a new production line and other tangible fixed assets.

In that year, the company also had a higher level of inventory, probably because of higher

production.
ASSETS
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019
TOTAL ASSETS 360,577 | 342,775 | 370,952 | 315,443
Fixed assets 90,580 92,562 96,502 93,254
Intangible fixed assets 181 148 115 133
Tangible fixed assets 67,457 68,900 83,638 83,044
Long-term financial assets 22,942 23,514 12,749 10,077
Current assets 268,543 | 249,775 | 273,888 | 221,369
Inventory 108,692 | 131,030 | 155875 | 111,551
Receivables 146,259 | 114202 | 117,106 | 107,851
— long-term receivables 0 0 0 0
— short-term receivables 146,259 | 114,202 | 117,106 | 107,851
Cash and cash equivalents 13,592 4,543 907 1,967
Accrued assets 1,454 438 562 820

Table 1 The balance sheet — assets

5.3.2 The balance sheet — liabilities

In the development of the financial structure, there can be seen an increasing value of equity.
Since the registered capital does not change, it means that the company is permanently
profitable. The company tries to keep the profits inside the company for its future
development. Only in 2018 and 2019 share of profits was paid off. The proportion of
liabilities to the equity is fluctuating, but in 2019 is the lowest proportion. Liabilities are

comprised mainly of short-term payables.

LIABILITIES
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019
TOTAL LIABILITIES 360,577 | 342,775 | 370,952 | 315,443
Equity 162,487 | 167,941 | 173,604 | 180,752
Registered capital 50,050 50,050 50,050 50,050
Capital surplus and capital funds 7,374 7,946 -2,819 -5,491
Funds from profit 10,010 10,010 10,010 10,010
Net profit or loss from previous years 88,222 95,053 87,457 | 112,391
Net profit or loss from the current period 6.831 4,882 28.906 13,792
Liabilities 198,090 | 174,834 | 197,348 | 134,691
Provisions 3,563 2.834 823 130
Payables 194,527 | 172,000 | 196,525 | 134,561
— long-term payables 4,330 5,542 6,098 6,833
— short-term payables 190,197 | 166,458 | 190,427 | 127,728
Accrued liabilities 0 0 0 0

Table 2 The balance sheet — liabilities
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5.3.3 The income statement — costs

The development of the total costs of this company has a similar tendency as the

development of its total revenues. The highest total costs were in 2018 where the company

sold more goods and products, so the production consumption increased.

COSTS
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Production consumption 713,713 | 686,291 742,105 | 686,554
— cost of goods sold 283,545 | 291,716 | 339,068 | 320,549
— material and energy consumption 359,135 | 326,959 | 337,553 | 297475
— services 71,033 67,616 65,484 68,530
Changes in inventory of own products (+/-) 2,322 5,071 -7,645 3,041
Personnel costs 79,246 81,341 84,854 84,633
Operating part adjustments 6,349 7,130 4,012 7,651
— fixed assets adjustments 5,441 5,466 6,622 7,509
— inventory adjustments 1,233 1,685 -3,528 1,008
— receivables adjustments -325 -21 918 -866
Other operating costs 7,078 4,452 1,982 4,398
— taxes and fees 733 845 861 955
— provisions in operating part 2,819 -657 -1,452 -693
— other operating costs 3,526 4,264 2,573 4,136
Interest costs and similar costs 1,532 1,344 2,046 2,230
Other financial costs 3,563 5,163 6,071 4,488
Income tax 2,113 3,989 3,334 2,515
TOTAL COSTS 815,916 | 794,781 | 836,759 | 795,510

Table 3 The income statement — costs

5.3.4 The income statement — revenues

It can be seen from the revenues that the company has a quite alike proportion of revenues

from own products and services and revenues from goods. Nevertheless, the proportion of

revenues from products and services is higher. It means that the company has a production

character. In 2018 the company also started to have revenues from long-term financial assets.

Long-term financial assets represent equity investments in associated companies.

REVENUES
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Revenues from products and services 489,682 | 451,822 | 462,650 | 417,748
Revenues from goods 325,948 | 335,931 | 384,687 | 381,509
Other operating revenues 3,688 7,100 1,794 3,832
— revenues from sales of fixed assets 386 3 1 1
— revenues from sales of material 352 253 253 159
— other operating revenues 2,950 6,844 1,540 3,672
Revenues from long-term financial assets 0 0 12,463 3,972
Interest revenues and similar revenues 3 0 0 1
Other financial revenues 3,426 4,810 4,071 2,240
TOTAL REVENUES (Net turnover) 822,747 | 799,663 | 865,665 | 809,302

Table 4 The income statement — revenues
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5.3.5 Profit or loss of the accounting period

Regarding the loss or profit of these accounting periods, the company always had a profit.
The highest rate of profit was in 2018 because the sales were higher, maybe due to higher
investments in marketing. Also because the company had a profit from financial operations

in 2018.

PROFIT OR LOSS OF THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Operating profit or loss 10,610 10,568 23,823 16,812
Profit or loss from financial operations -1,666 -1,697 8,417 -505
Profit or loss before tax 8,944 8,871 32,240 16,307
Net profit or loss of the accounting period 6,331 4,882 28,906 13,792

Table 5 Profit or loss of the accounting period

The net profit of the accounting period in the analysed years is shown in the chart below.

Net profit of the accounting period
(in thousands of CZK)

28,906

13,792
6,831
4,882
2016 2017 2018 2019

Figure 2 Chart of net profit of the accounting period

5.3.6 Forms of profit

FORMS OF PROFIT
(in thousands of CZK)
2016 2017 2018 2019

EBITDA 144,269 | 149,165 | 179,080 | 170,409
- depreciation and amortization 133,793 | 138,950 | 144,794 | 151,872
= EBIT 10,476 10,215 34,286 18,537
- interests 1,532 1,344 2,046 2,230
=EBT 8,944 8,871 32,240 16,307
- taxes 2,113 3,989 3,334 2,515
=EAT 6,831 4,882 28,906 13,792

Table 6 Forms of profit
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6 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY

This part of the bachelor’s thesis deals with the financial analysis of the selected company
in the period 2016-2019. There is carried out the analysis of absolute, ratio, subtractive, and
other indicators to evaluate the company’s financial health. All the information used for the
analysis is taken from the company’s annual reports from 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019. Data
from the balance sheet, income statement, and other statements were also used from the
annual reports. All formulas used to calculate the indicators are described in the theoretical
part of this thesis. The company is compared to the industry group Manufacture of other

food products (CZ-NACE 10.8).

6.1 Absolute indicators
Among absolute indicators belong vertical and horizontal analysis. Analysis of these

indicators is the starting point of the financial analysis.

6.1.1 Vertical analysis

Vertical analysis of assets

Current assets comprise a major part of the assets. In the reporting period, it is always about
70%. Current assets are dominated by inventory and receivables. The company has quite a
stable structure of assets. Only in 2019, the proportion of current assets decreased a bit

because the company had less value of inventory.

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF ASSETS
(rounded to whole numbers)
2016 2017 2018 2019
TOTAL ASSETS 100% 100% 100% 100%
Fixed assets 25% 27% 26% 30%
Intangible fixed assets 0% 0% 0% 0%
Tangible fixed assets 19% 20% 23% 27%
Long-term financial assets 6% 7% 3% 3%
Current assets 75% 73% 74% 70%
Inventory 30% 39% 42% 35%
Receivables 41% 33% 32% 34%
— long-term receivables 0% 0% 0% 0%
— short-term receivables 41% 33% 32% 34%
Cash and cash equivalents 4% 1% 0% 1%
Accrued assets 0% 0% 0% 0%

Vertical analysis of liabilities

Concerning the structure of the liabilities, the company has a relatively balanced proportion

of equity and liabilities which is quite stable during these years. Only in 2019, the equity

Table 7 Vertical analysis of assets
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ratio is higher. The main part of the equity is net profit from previous years because the

company tries to keep the profits inside the company for its future development. Payables

represent a major part of the liabilities.

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF LIABILITIES
(rounded to whole numbers)
2016 2017 2018 2019
TOTAL LIABILITIES 100% 100% 100% 100%
Equity 45% 49% 47% 57%
Registered capital 14% 15% 13% 16%
Capital surplus and capital funds 2% 2% -1% -2%
Funds from profit 3% 3% 3% 3%
Net profit or loss from previous years 24% 28% 24% 36%
Net profit or loss from the current period 2% 1% 8% 4%
Liabilities 55% 51% 53% 43%
Provisions 1% 1% 0% 0%
Payables 54% 50% 53% 43%
— long-term payables 1% 2% 2% 2%
— short-term payables 53% 48% 51% 41%
Accrued liabilities 0% 0% 0% 0%

Table 8 Vertical analysis of liabilities

Vertical analysis of costs

When looking at the vertical analysis of costs, it can be seen that the structure of costs was
also quite stable in the analysed years. The main item of costs was always production
consumption, which includes mainly costs of goods sold, and material and energy

consumption. Personnel costs represent about 10% of costs.

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF COSTS
(rounded to whole numbers)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Production consumption 88% 86% 89% 86%
— cost of goods sold 35% 37% 41% 40%
— material and energy consumption 44% 41% 40% 37%
— services 9% 8% 8% 9%
Changes in inventory of own products (+/-) 0% 1% -1% 0%
Personnel costs 10% 10% 10% 11%
Operating part adjustments 1% 1% 1% 1%
— fixed assets adjustments 1% 1% 1% 1%
— inventory adjustments 0% 0% 0% 0%
— receivables adjustments 0% -3% 0% 0%
Other operating costs 1% 1% 0% 1%
— taxes and fees 0% 0% 0% 0%
— provisions in operating part 0% 0% 0% 0%
— other operating costs 0% 1% 0% 1%
Interest costs and similar costs 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other financial costs 0% 1% 1% 1%
Income tax 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL COSTS 100% 100% 100% 100%

Table 9 Vertical analysis of costs



TBU in Zlin, Faculty of Humanities 33

Vertical analysis of revenues

Revenues are built up from revenues from product and services and from revenues from
goods. These two items create almost 100% of revenues. The higher item is revenues from
products and services, which shows that the company has a production character. Other items

besides there two are negligible.

VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF REVENUES
(rounded to whole numbers)
2016 2017 2018 2019
Revenues from products and services 59% 56% 54% 52%
Revenues from goods 40% 42% 44% 47%
Other operating revenues 1% 1% 0% 0%
— revenues from sales of fixed assets 0% 0% 0% 0%
— revenues from sales of material 0% 0% 0% 0%
— other operating revenues 0% 1% 0% 0%
Revenues from long-term financial assets 0% 0% 1% 1%
Interest revenues and similar revenues 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other financial revenues 0% 1% 1% 0%
TOTAL REVENUES (Net turnover) 100% 100% 100% 100%

Table 10 Vertical analysis of revenues

6.1.2 Horizontal analysis

Horizontal analysis of assets

The following three tables show the horizontal analysis of assets in all of the selected years.
When comparing the year 2017 to the year 2016 (Table 11), total assets decreased by about
5%. It was caused by a decrease in current assets, namely receivables and cash and cash

equivalents. On the other hand, inventory increased quite significantly.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF ASSETS (17/16)
2016 | 2017 | 1716 1716
(in thousands of CZK)
TOTAL ASSETS 360,577 | 342,775 | -17,802 | -4.9%
Fixed assets 90,580 92,562 1,982 2.2%
Intangible fixed assets 181 148 -33 | -18.2%
Tangible fixed assets 67,457 68,900 1,443 2.1%
Long-term financial assets 22,942 23,514 572 2.5%
Current assets 268,543 | 249,775 | -18,768 -7.0%
Inventory 108,692 | 131,030 ] 22,338 | 20.6%
Receivables 146,259 | 114,202 | -32,057 | -21.9%
— long-term receivables 0 0 0 0.0%
— short-term receivables 146,259 | 114,202 | -32,057 | -21.9%
Cash and cash equivalents 13,592 45431 -9,049 | -66.6%
Accrued assets 1,454 438 -1,016 -70%

Table 11 Horizontal analysis of assets (17/16)



TBU in Zlin, Faculty of Humanities 34

Table 12 shows that in 2018 was compared to 2017 increase in assets of about 8%. The
value of tangible fixed assets increased because the company made an investment and bought
a new production line and an optical sorter machine. The increase in inventory resulted from
higher production because the new production line has higher output. Cash and cash

equivalents decreased by 80% from the previous year.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF ASSETS (18/17)
2017 | 2018 | 1817 18/17
(in thousands of CZK)
TOTAL ASSETS 342,775 | 370,952 | 28,177 8.2%
Fixed assets 92,562 96,502 3,940 4.3%
Intangible fixed assets 148 115 -33 | -22.3%
Tangible fixed assets 68,900 83,638 | 14,738 | 21.4%
Long-term financial assets 23,514 12,749 | -10,765 | -45.8%
Current assets 249775 | 273,888 | 24,113 9.7%
Inventory 131,030 | 155.875] 24,845 19.0%
Receivables 114,202 | 117,106 2,904 2.5%
— long-term receivables 0 0 0 0.0%
— short-term receivables 114,202 | 117,106 2,904 2.5%
Cash and cash equivalents 4,543 907 | -3,636 -80%
Accrued assets 438 562 124 | 28.3%

Table 12 Horizontal analysis of assets (18/17)

From Table 13, it is visible that the assets decreased by 15% in 2019. It was caused
mainly by a decrease in current assets, concretely inventory. On the other hand, value of cash

and cash equivalents increased.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF ASSETS (19/18)
2018 | 2019 | 19418 19/18
(in thousands of CZK)
TOTAL ASSETS 370,952 | 315,443 | -55,509 | -15.0%
Fixed assets 96,502 03,254 | -3,248 -3.4%
Intangible fixed assets 115 133 18| 15.7%
Tangible fixed assets 83,638 83,044 | -0,594 -0.7%
Long-term financial assets 12,749 10,077 | -2,672 | -21.0%
Current assets 273,888 | 221,369 | -52,519 | -19.2%
Inventory 155,875 | 111,551 | -44,324 | -28.4%
Receivables 117,106 | 107,851 | -9,255 -7.9%
— long-term receivables 0 0 0 0.0%
— short-term receivables 117,106 | 107,851 | -9,255 -7.9%
Cash and cash equivalents 907 1,967 1,060 | 116.9%
Accrued assets 562 820 258 | 45.9%

Table 13 Horizontal analysis of assets (19/18)
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Horizontal analysis of liabilities

The following three tables present the horizontal analysis of liabilities in the selected years.
From Table 14, it is visible that liabilities decreased, which was caused by a lower value of
provisions, payables, and lower profit of the current period. The registered capital and funds

from profit did not change in any of these years.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF LIA]|31LITIES (|17/ 16)
2016 2017 17/16
(in thousands of CZK) 17/16
TOTAL LIABILITIES 360,577 | 342,775 -17.802 -4.9%
Equity 162,487 | 167,941 5,454 3.4%
Registered capital 50,050 50,050 0 0.0%
Capital surplus and capital funds 7,374 7,946 0,572 7.8%
Funds from profit 10,010 10,010 0 0.0%
Net profit or loss from previous years 88,222 95,053 6,831 7.7%
Net profit or loss from the current period 6,831 4,882 -1,949 -28.5%
Liabilities 198,090 | 174,834 | -23,256 -11.7%
Provisions 3,563 2,834 -0,729 -20.5%
Payables 194,527 | 172,000 | -22,527 -11.6%
— long-term payables 4,330 5,542 1,212 28.0%
— short-term payables 190,197 | 166,458 -23,739 -12.5%
Accrued liabilities 0 0 0 0.0%

Table 14 Horizontal analysis of liabilities (17/16)
Table 15 shows that the year 2018 was successful because profit increased by 492%
which was caused probably by larger investments into marketing, new cooperation, higher
demand, and higher production. On the other hand, provisions and capital funds decreased,

concretely losses from revaluation of assets and liabilities.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF LIA]|31LITIES (|18/17)
2017 2018 18/17
(in thousands of CZK) 18/17
TOTAL LIABILITIES 342,775 | 370,952 28,177 8.2%
Equity 167,941 173,604 5,663 3.4%
Registered capital 50,050 50,050 0 0.0%
Capital surplus and capital funds 7,946 -2.819 -10,765 | -135.5%
Funds from profit 10,010 10,010 0 0.0%
Net profit or loss from previous years 95,053 87.457 -7,596 -8.0%
Net profit or loss from the current period 4,882 28,906 24,024 492.1%
Liabilities 174,834 197,348 22,514 12.9%
Provisions 2,834 823 -2,011 -71.0%
Payables 172,000 | 196,525 24,525 14.3%
— long-term payables 5,542 6,098 0.556 10.0%
— short-term payables 166,458 190,427 23,969 14.4%
Accrued liabilities 0 0 0 0.0%

Table 15 Horizontal analysis of liabilities (18/17)
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When comparing years 2018 and 2019 (Table 16), in 2019, total liabilities decreased by
15%, which was a result of a decrease in provisions, payables (mainly payables to credit
institutions), capital funds (again losses from revaluation of assets and liabilities), and net
profit from the current period which was lower than in 2018. An increase was registered in
net profit from previous years because the company tries to keep the profits inside the

company for its future development.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF LIABILITIES (19/18)
2018 | 2019 | 19418 19/18
(in thousands of CZK)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 370,952 | 315,443 -55,509 -15.0%
Equity 173,604 | 180,752 7,148 4.1%
Registered capital 50,050 50,050 0 0.0%
Capital surplus and capital funds -2,819 -5,491 -2,672 -94.8%
Funds from profit 10,010 10,010 0 0.0%
Net profit or loss from previous vears 87,457 | 112,391 24,934 28.5%
Net profit or loss from the current period 28,906 13,792 -15,114 -52.3%
Liabilities 197,348 | 134,691 -62,657 -31.7%
Provisions 823 130 -693 -84.2%
Payables 196,525 134,561 -61,964 -31.5%
— long-term payables 6,098 6,833 0,735 12.1%
— short-term payables 190,427 | 127,728 -62,699 -32.9%
Accrued liabilities 0 0 0 0.0%

Table 16 Horizontal analysis of liabilities (19/18)

Horizontal analysis of costs

Last but one of horizontal analysis is the analysis of costs which is demonstrated in the
following three tables. Table 17 indicates that the company had lower costs in 2017 than in
2016. This decrease was caused by a decrease in provisions in operating part, material and
energy consumption, and services. Items that increased were cost of goods sold, changes in

inventory of own products, other financial costs, or income tax.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF C(|)STS (1'7/’1|6)
2016 2017 17/16
(in thousands of CZK) 17/16
Production consumption 713,713 | 686,291 -27.422 -3.8%
— cost of goods sold 283,545 | 291,716 8,171 2.9%
— material and energy consumption 359,135 | 326,959 -32,176 -9.0%
— services 71,033 67,616 -3.417 -4.8%
Changes in inventory of own products (+/-) 2,322 5,071 2,749 118.4%
Personnel costs 79,246 81.341 2,095 2.6%
Operating part adjustments 6,349 7,130 0,781 12.3%
— fixed assets adjustments 5,441 5,466 0,025 0.5%
— inventory adjustments 1,233 1,685 0,452 36.7%
— receivables adjustments -325 21 304 93.5%
Other operating costs 7,078 4.452 -2.626 -37.1%
— taxes and fees 733 845 112 15.3%
— provisions in operating part 2,819 -657 -3,476 | -123.3%
— other operating costs 3,526 4,264 738 20.9%
Interest costs and similar costs 1,532 1.344 -188 -12.3%
Other financial costs 3,563 5,163 1,600 44.9%
Income tax 2,113 3,989 1,876 88.8%
TOTAL COSTS 815,916 | 794,781 -21,135 -2.6%

Table 17 Horizontal analysis of costs (17/16)
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In 2018 the total costs increased by 5.3% (Table 18). This increase was caused mainly
by the increase of cost of goods sold because in this year the purchase price of some
commodities increased due to lower harvest. Decrease in changes in inventory of own
products then reduced total costs. Services included mainly marketing costs because in 2018

the company invested in marketing more.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF C(|)STS (181’1|7)
2017 2018 18/17
(in thousands of CZK) 18/17
Production consumption 686,291 | 742,105 55,814 8.1%
— cost of goods sold 201,716 | 339,068 | 47,352 16.2%
— material and energy consumption 326,959 | 337,553 | 10,594 3.2%
— services 67,616 65,484 -2,132 -3.2%
Changes in inventory of own products (+/-) 5,071 -7,645 1 -12,716 -250.8%
Personnel costs 81,341 84.854 3,513 4.3%
Operating part adjustments 7,130 4,012 | -3,118 -43.7%
— fixed assets adjustments 5,466 6,622 1,156 21.1%
— inventory adjustments 1,685 -3,528 | -5.213 -309.4%
— receivables adjustments -21 918 939 | 4.471.4%
Other operating costs 4,452 1,982 -2,470 -55.5%
— taxes and fees 845 861 16 1.9%
— provisions in operating part -657 -1.452 -795 -99.8%
— other operating costs 4,264 2573 -1,691 -39.7%
Interest costs and similar costs 1,344 2,046 702 52.2%
Other financial costs 5,163 6,071 908 17.6%
Income tax 3,989 3,334 -655 -16.4%
TOTAL COSTS 794,781 | 836,759 | 41,978 5.3%

Table 18 Horizontal analysis of costs (18/17)
The following Table 19 presents the horizontal analysis of costs in the last of the
analysed years. It is visible that costs decreased in 2019 compared to 2018 by 5%. It means
that costs were in 2019 similar to 2017. What increased in 2018 then decreased back in 2019.

The item of services increased because of even higher marketing costs as a result of higher

promotion.
HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF COSTS (19/18)
2018 | 2019 | 1918 19118
(in thousands of CZK)

Production consumption 742,105 | 686,554 | -55,551 -7.5%
— cost of goods sold 339,068 | 320,549 | -18,519 -5.5%
— material and energy consumption 337,553 | 297475 -40,078 -11.9%
— services 65,484 68,530 3,046 4.7%

Changes in inventory of own products (+/-) -7,645 3,041 10,686 139.8%

Personnel costs 84.854 84.633 -221 -0.3%

Operating part adjustments 4,012 7,651 3,639 90.7%
— fixed assets adjustments 6,622 7,509 887 13.4%
— inventory adjustments -3,528 1,008 4,536 128.6%
— receivables adjustments 918 -866 -1,784 | -194.3%

Other operating costs 1,982 4,398 2416 121.9%
— taxes and fees 861 955 94 10.9%
— provisions in operating part -1,452 -693 759 52.3%
— other operating costs 2,573 4,136 1,563 60.7%

Interest costs and similar costs 2,046 2,230 184 9.0%

Other financial costs 6,071 4,488 -1,583 -26.1%

Income tax 3,334 2,515 -819 -24.6%

TOTAL COSTS 836,759 | 795,510 -41,249 -4.9%

Table 19 Horizontal analysis of costs (19/18)
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Horizontal analysis of revenues

The last horizontal analysis is the analysis of revenues. Table 20 shows that in 2017 total
revenues decreased compared to 2016. Revenues from products and services were lower,

while revenues from goods were higher. Other operating revenues increased in 2017.

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF REV|ENUES 1 TI 16)
2016 2017 17/16
(in thousands of CZK) 17/16
Revenues from products and services 489,682 | 451,822 -37,860 -7.7%
Revenues from goods 325,948 | 335,931 9,983 3.1%
Other operating revenues 3,688 7,100 3,412 92.5%
— revenues from sales of fixed assets 386 3 -383 -99.2%
— revenues from sales of material 352 253 -99 -28.1%
— other operating revenues 2,950 6,844 3,894 132.0%
Revenues from long-term financial assets 0 0 0 0.0%
Interest revenues and similar revenues 3 0 -3 | -100.0%
Other financial revenues 3,426 4,810 1,384 40.4%
TOTAL REVENUES (Net turnover) 822,747 | 799,663 -23.084 -2.8%

Table 20 Horizontal analysis of revenues (17/16)
Table 21 contains the horizontal analysis of the year 2018 compared to 2017. In 2018,
the revenues were higher by 8.3%. This was caused by higher revenues from goods, and also

higher revenues from products and services. Revenues from long-term financial assets also

increased.
HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF REV|ENUES (1|8!17)
2017 2018 18/17
(in thousands of CZK) 18/17
Revenues from products and services 451,822 | 462,650 10,828 2.4%
Revenues from goods 335,931 | 384,687 48,756 14.5%
Other operating revenues 7,100 1,794 -5,306 -74.7%
— revenues from sales of fixed assets 3 1 -2 -66.7%
— revenues from sales of material 253 253 0 0.0%
— other operating revenues 6,844 1,540 -5,304 -77.5%
Revenues from long-term financial assets 0 12,463 12,463 -
Interest revenues and similar revenues 0 0 0 0.0%
Other financial revenues 4,810 4,071 -739 -15.4%
TOTAL REVENUES (Net turnover) 799,663 | 865,665 66,002 8.3%

Table 21 Horizontal analysis of revenues (18/17)
In Table 22, there can be seen that total revenues in 2019 decreased by 6.5%, which was
caused by lower revenues from products and services, revenues from goods, and revenues

from long-term financial assets.
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF REV|ENUES (le 18)
2018 2019 19/18
(in thousands of CZK) 19/18
Revenues from products and services 462,650 | 417,748 -44,902 -9.7%
Revenues from goods 384,687 | 381,509 -3,178 -0.8%
Other operating revenues 1,794 3,832 2,038 113.6%
— revenues from sales of fixed assets 1 1 0 0.0%
— revenues from sales of material 253 159 -94 -37.2%
— other operating revenues 1,540 3,672 2,132 138.4%
Revenues from long-term financial assets 12,463 3,972 -8,491 -68.1%
Interest revenues and similar revenues 0 1 -1 -
Other financial revenues 4,071 2,240 -1,831 -45.0%
TOTAL REVENUES (Net turnover) 865,665 | 809,302 -56,363 -6.5%

Table 22 Horizontal analysis of revenues (19/18)

6.2 Ratio indicators

This chapter focuses on ratio indicators that are basic tools of financial analysis.

6.2.1 Liquidity ratios

Liquidity ratios show whether the company is able to pay its short-term obligations.

Liquidity ratios | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | Recommended values
Current ratio 141 | 150 | 1.44 | 1.73 1525

Quick ratio 084 | 0.71 | 0.62 | 0.86 1-1.5

Cash ratio 0.07 1 0.03 | 0.01 | 0.02 0.2-0.5

Table 23 Liquidity ratios

Table 23 shows liquidity ratios of the company in the selected period. Current ratio is
slightly under the recommended value in the years 2016 and 2018, but in 2017 and 2019, the
result is in the range of recommended values. The company should keep the current ratio in
the following years at least the same as in 2019 because if the current ratio is under 1.5, the
company may have problems with solvency.

Quick ratio and cash ratio do not reach the recommended values in any of these years.
It may signal that the company does not have enough financial means in cash or its bank
accounts to pay its short-term payables. However, the company uses bank overdraft at three
banks in the limit of 280 million CZK, so the low values of cash ratio are not alarming. It
was also found out when analysing efficiency ratios that the company gets paid their
receivables on an average of 54 days, while it pays its payables on an average of 77 days. It
means that the company should have enough money to pay its payables on time. It is visible
that the company tries not to tie a lot of means in inventory, receivables, and bank accounts.

In Table 24, there are liquidity ratios of the industry group Manufacture of other food

products. It is visible that the selected company is with few exceptions under the values of
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industry liquidity ratios. Nevertheless, the industry group also do not reach the recommended

values in most of the ratios. (Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic, n.d.)

Liquidity ratios | 0,61 5017 | 2018 2019
(industry)

Current ratio 1.51 | 1.47 | 1.34 | 1.43

Quick ratio 0.98 | 0.90 | 0.81 | 0.87

Cash ratio 0.19 | 0.18 | 0.19 | 0.21

Table 24 Liquidity ratios (industry)

6.2.2 Solvency ratios

Debt ratio is a basic indicator of indebtedness. The recommended value is 30—60% in which
the company was in all these years. The value of the debt ratio was between 42-54%. It can
be seen that the company’s financial structure was not changing a lot, and it was quite
balanced. The company was using more external financing sources than its own, except in
2019, where a change was, and the company was using more own financing sources.

The debt to equity ratio was in the range of 0.75—1.22. This indicator is important for
banks when granting a loan. A positive trend can be seen — the company has a lower value
of liabilities than equity.

Interest coverage shows how many times is profit larger than interest costs. The
recommended value is more than 5. The company’s interest coverage is above the minimum
recommended value, so it is considered to be very good. The highest value of interest

coverage was in 2018, and it was 16.76.

Solvency ratios 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | Recommended values
Debt ratio 54.9% | 51.0% | 53.2% | 42.7% 30-60%

Debt to equity ratio | 1.22 1.04 1.14 0.75 -

Interest coverage 6.84 7.60 | 16.76 | 8.31 =5

Table 25 Solvency ratios
In Table 26, there are solvency ratios of the industry. Considering the debt ratio and debt
to equity ratio, the company has quite similar values to the industry. Interest coverage is
better in the industry, except in 2018, when the company had a higher value of interest
coverage than the industry. All of these indicators are very good in the company as well as

in the industry. (Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic, n.d.)

Solvency ratios | 0 ¢ 5017 | 2018 | 2019
(industry)

Debt ratio 46.7% | 45.8% | 50.0% | 43.4%
Debt to equity ratio | 0.88 0.85 1.00 0.77
Interest coverage 29.09 | 20.50 | 11.22 | 26.59

Table 26 Solvency ratios (industry)
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6.2.3 Profitability ratios

Profitability ratios indicate that the company is constantly profit-making. All of these
indicators were fluctuating in the selected years. The highest fluctuation was in 2018, when
all indicators increased rapidly. The greatest change was in return on equity which jumped
from 2.9% to 16.7%. This could be caused by the change in the structure of financial
resources where revenues from long-term financial assets increased, also by a higher
proportion of liabilities to equity, higher return on sales, and simply because the year 2018
was successful for the company. It is good that none of these indicators was under zero in

any of these years. ROS represents the profit margin.

Profitability ratios | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
ROA 29% | 3.0% | 9.2% | 5.9%
ROE 4.2% | 2.9% | 16.7% | 7.6%
ROS 0.8% | 0.6% | 3.4% | 1.7%

Table 27 Profitability ratios

Profitability ratios of the company in the analysed years are also shown in the chart below.

Profitability ratios
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%
2016 2017 2018 2019
e ROA e ROE ROS

Figure 3 Chart of profitability ratios
To compare profitability ratios with the industry, the company had lower values of all
profitability ratios, except in 2018, when the company had much better profitability ratios
than the industry. Profitability ratios of the industry are shown in Table 28. (Ministry of
Industry and Trade of the Czech Republic, n.d.)

Profitability ratios | 0,0 | 3017 | 2018 | 2019
(industry)

ROA 93% | 7.9% | 5.8% | 14.0%

ROE 13.9% | 11.3% | 8.1% | 19.1%

ROS 59% | 5.0% | 3.4% | 82%

Table 28 Profitability ratios (industry)
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6.2.4 Efficiency ratios
These indicators measure how efficiently the company manages its assets to generate
revenues. Total assets turnover ratio should be at least 1, which this company complies with.
It has total assets turnover ratio in each of these years higher than 2. It means that the
company manages its assets efficiently. The highest ratio was in 2019 when assets turned
over 2.5% per year, and one turn took 142 days. Inventory turnover ratio is also satisfactory.
It is good to compare the accounts payable turnover ratio with the accounts receivable
turnover ratio. Considering the receivable turnover ratio, the company gets paid their
receivables on an average of 54 days, while it pays its payables on an average of 77 days. It
means that the company has longer accounts payable turnover than accounts receivable
turnover, which is beneficial. The accounts receivable turnover tends to decrease, which is

good because the payment morale of customers is getting better.

Efficiency ratios 2016 2017 2018 2019
. 2.26 2.30 2.28 2.53
Total assets turnover ratio 159 days | 157 days | 158 days | 142 days
Inventory turnover ratio 7.50 6.01 244 7.16
48 days | 60 days | 66days | 50 days
Accounts receivable turnover ratio | 65 days | 52 days | 50days | 49 days
Accounts payable turnover ratio 86days | 79days | 83 days | 61 days

Table 29 Efficiency ratios

Table 30 shows efficiency ratios in the industry. The company had higher total assets
turnover ratio in all of these years. Inventory turnover ratio is quite similar to the industry.
In 2016 and 2019, the company had better inventory turnover ratio than the industry.
Considering the accounts receivable turnover ratio and accounts payable turnover ratio, the
company gets its receivables earlier than how it is in the industry. This shows good morale
of customers. The company also pays its payables much earlier than how it is in the industry.
Both in the industry and the company, there is longer accounts payable turnover ratio than

accounts receivable turnover ratio, which is good for the company. (Ministry of Industry and

Trade of the Czech Republic, n.d.)

Efficiency ratios (industry) 2016 2017 2018 2019
. 1.25 1.22 1.18 1.25
Total assets turnover ratio 287 days | 293 days | 306 days | 267 days
Inventory turnover ratio 6.52 6.34 6.50 6.73
55days | S7days | 57days | 53 days
Accounts receivable turnover ratio | 83 days | 72 days | 68 days | 63 days
Accounts payable turnover ratio 128 days | 129 days | 148 days | 120 days

Table 30 Efficiency ratios (industry)
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6.3 Subtractive indicators

Among subtractive indicators belong net working capital, which is analysed below.

6.3.1 Net working capital
Table 31 shows the development of net working capital (NWC) in the selected company
during the analysed years. NWC has in all of these years positive values, which means that
current liabilities are smaller than current assets (which is the source for repayment of these
liabilities). The company has a ‘financial cushion’ available. This ‘cushion’ reached the
values of more than 93 million CZK in 2019.

The ratio of NWC to current assets should be between 30-50%. It shows whether the
NWC is big enough to the proportion of current assets. The company has a sufficient level
of NWC. In 20162018 the ratio was about 30%. In 2019 it was about 40% which

corresponds to the recommended values.

Subtractive indicators

(in thousands of CZK) 2016 2017 2018 2019
Current assets 268,543 | 249,775 | 273,888 | 221,369
Current liabilities 190,197 | 166,458 | 190,427 | 127,728
Net working capital 78,346 | 83,317 | 83,461 | 93,641
Ratio of NWC to current assets | 29.2% | 33.4% | 30.5% | 42.3%

Table 31 Net working capital

6.4 Bankruptcy models
From bankruptcy models were chosen Altman Z-Score and index INOS, which are presented

below.

6.4.1 Altman Z-Score

According to the Z-Score values in the selected years, it can be seen that the company is in
the safe zone, and it has good financial health because in all of these years the indicator was
higher than 2.9. The company is not, according to this indicator, in danger of bankruptcy.
The Z-Score is growing during these years, and the highest values were reached in 2019.
The selected company is not publicly traded on the stock exchange, so this formula was used:

Z=0.717X, + 0.847X, + 3.107X; + 0.420X, + 0.998X-.
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Altman Z-Score | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
Xy 0.156 | 0.174 | 0.161 | 0.213
X, 0.223 | 0.247 | 0.266 | 0.334
X3 0.090 | 0.093 | 0.287 | 0.183
X4 0.345 ] 0.403 | 0.369 | 0.564
Xs 2.257 2294 | 2.280 | 2.529
Z-Score 3.071 | 3.211 | 3.363 | 3.827

6.4.2 Index INOS

Table 32 Altman Z-Score

From the perspective of the index INO5 indicator, the company was in 2016 and 2017 in the

grey zone. In 2018 the situation was much better when the index was higher than 1.6, which

means that the company created value and had good financial health. The index then went

down in 2019, and it was on the boundary of the grey zone.

Index INOS | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019
A 0.237 1 0.255 | 0.244 | 0.304
B 0.274 1 0.304 | 0.670 | 0.333
C 0.115]0.118 | 0.367 | 0.233
D 0.479 1 0.490 | 0.490 | 0.539
E 0.127 1 0.135 | 0.129 | 0.156
INOS 1.232 | 1.302 | 1.901 | 1.565

Table 33 Index INO5
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7 EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

During its existence, the selected company has built a strong position in the Czech and
foreign markets. It was found out that the company was relatively stable during the analysed
years. The company puts emphasis on the quality, which brings a lot of awards and also only
a few complaints from customers. Strong competition can be a problem, which probably
caused lower sales in 2019. The company should strive for beating the competition. There
was not found any severe problem in the financial analysis. However, some indicators may
always be improved. The overall performance of the company is favourable.

Considering the liquidity ratios, there might be a problem with a lower quick and cash
ratio. However, the company uses bank overdraft at three banks in the limit of 280 million
CZK, so the low values of cash ratio are not alarming. Current ratio has a satisfactory value
which is drawing near the value of the industry.

Analysis of solvency is propitious, and there were not found any problems. Debt ratio
is decreasing due to a higher proportion of equity, namely, profit from previous years.

Profitability ratios are also great because none of these indicators was under zero in any
of these years. However, the company may try to improve all of these indicators because
they are all under the industry levels, except in 2018 when the company had better
profitability ratios than the industry. According to the information from the annual report,
the company tries to increase profitability, mainly by more investments and improvement of
the automation of production and operations in the company.

Efficiency ratios reach good values. Total assets turnover ratio is increasing, and it is
also higher than in the industry. Inventory turnover ratio is similar to the industry, in 2019,
it is even higher. Accounts receivable turnover ratio and accounts payable turnover ratio are
positive, and they are decreasing during that period. These ratios are better than in the
industry, which shows good ability of the company to pay its payables and good customers
morale. It is also great that the company gets paid their receivables on an average of 54 days,
while it pays its payables on an average of 77 days. It means that the company has longer
accounts payable turnover than accounts receivable turnover, which is beneficial.

The company has sufficient value of NWC, which shows that it has a ‘financial cushion’
available. Bankruptcy models have favourable results as well. According to the Altman Z-
Score model, the company is in the safe zone in all of the analysed years, which means that
it is not in danger of bankruptcy. The Z-Score is growing, which signals a better condition

of the company. According to index INOS5, the company was in the grey zone in 2016 and
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2017, but then the situation in 2018 was much better. In 2018 the company was in the safe
zone, but in 2019 this index went down a bit again, and the company was on the boundary
of the grey zone. However, the company is not, according to these indicators, in danger of
bankruptcy.

My recommendation for the company is to try to operate as before, focus on actions to
beat the competition, and invest in modern marketing methods. It was shown that promotion
helped the company quite a lot in recent years, so it would be good to continue investing
mainly in modern promotion methods. Try to build attractive social media and public
relationships there. Maybe also cooperate with some influencers because these types of
promotion are quite effective nowadays. It has not been long since the company set up an
e-shop, so it should also focus on this form of selling in terms of promotion. These activities
connected with marketing would help the company to increase its sales and get the company
more into people’s awareness. The company also should continue with its investing activities
and automation to increase its profitability. Overall, the company is doing great, and there

are probably not any fundamental problems.
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CONCLUSION

The aim of this bachelor’s thesis was to make a financial analysis of the selected company
in the period 20162019, interpret the results, and also propose recommendations on how to
possibly improve the financial situation of the company.

The thesis consists of two main parts — theoretical and practical. The theoretical part
focuses on the description of financial analysis. There are described the objectives and users
of financial analysis, also sources of information, and methods of financial analysis. These
methods are later used in the practical part. The practical part consists of a brief introduction
of the company, and then it focuses on the financial analysis, where information from the
theoretical part was used. The methods include absolute indicators (vertical and horizontal
analysis), ratio indicators (liquidity, solvency, profitability, and efficiency ratios),
subtractive indicators (net working capital), and bankruptcy models (Altman Z-Score and
index INO5). Results of all of these indicators are analysed, and some of them are compared
to the industry. The last section of this thesis focuses on the evaluation of the company and
recommendations based on the results of the analysis.

From the analysis that has been done, it is possible to conclude that the company is
relatively stable and does not have any severe problems which could endanger its activity.
However, some indicators may be improved. The company may improve profitability ratios
because they are lower than in the industry. However, it is mentioned in the company’s
annual report that the company is trying to increase profitability, mainly by more
investments and improvement of the automation of production and operations in the
company. On the other hand, efficiency ratios reach good results, and they are higher than
industry values. Strong competition can be a problem. I recommend the company to focus
on actions to beat the competition and invest in modern marketing methods. It was shown
that promotion helped the company quite a lot in recent years, so it would be good to continue
investing mainly in modern promotion methods. The company should try to build attractive
social media and public relationships there, and also cooperate with some influencers
because these types of promotion are quite effective nowadays. Based on the results, it can
be concluded that the company is doing great, and there are probably not any fundamental
problems. The company should try to operate at least as before.

Compiling this bachelor’s thesis was an exciting experience. I have learnt a lot of new
information. The company can use this analysis for its future decisions or as a base for further

research.
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EAT Earnings after taxes

EBT Earnings before taxes

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxes
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ROA Return on assets
ROE Return on equity
ROS Return on sales

NWC Net working capital
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APPENDIX 1: BALANCE SHEET 2016

(in thousands of CZK)
Oznad AKTIVA L e aw s
fad Biné tiéetni obdobi Minule pestnt
Brutto Korekee Netto Hetto
a b [+ 1 2 3 4
AKTIVA CELKEM 1 523 909 - 165 332 360 57T 363 360
Dlouhodoby majetek 2 224 373 -133 733 90 380 92132
Bl Dhouhodoby nehmoty majetek 3 43480 -43278 181 25
B2 Ocenitelna prava 2 41347 -41 324 23 25
Bl2.1. Software 5 1852 -1 628 23 25
Bl22. Oistatni ocenitelna prava 8 20885 - 33 625
B.l4. Ostatni dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek 7 21132 - 1855 158
BlL DHouhodoby hmotny majetek a 157 871 - 90 514 67 457 Ti420
B.l1. Pozemky a stavby a TB 334 -42 77 35 550 38 00g
BUL1.1. Pozemky 10 2042 2842 2 G642
BilL1.2. Stavby 1" 75 882 -42 7T 32917 35 304
B2 Hmotné movite véci a jejich soubory 12 61815 -3211 22 704 24 527
B.l4. Ostatni diouhodoby hmotny majetek 13 16407 - 8 628 7778 5204
B.ll4.3. Jiny diouhodoby hmotny majetek 14 16407 - 8 628 7778 5204
RN et e i ) I
BJLS.1. Poskytnuté zalohvy na dlcuhodoby hmotny majetek 16 G834 624 am
BIL52. Medokonceny dlouhodoby hmoiny majetek 17 781 781 202
B Dlouhodoby finanéni majetek 18 22842 22842 20 687
B.IL3. Podily - podstaty viiv 18 22842 22842 20 687
C. Obézna aktiva 20 300 082 -H SEBI 268 543 270 649
CL Zasoby 21 111 862 -3170 108 G2 133 56d
| Material 22 81772 -2 55A 59213 TET18
cl2 Medokonéena vyroba a polotovary 23 5 54 159
Cl3. yrobky a zboi 24 40 526 - &1 43915 57 639
C.lL31. yrobky 25 23 681 - 281 23420 26283
C.l3z Zhodi 26 25 845 - 350 25 4p5 21 408
c Pohledawvky a7 174 028 - 28 3608 143 2508 132034
clz Kratkodobé pohledavky 2B 174 628 - 23 360 144 250 132038
C.l2.a. Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahi 28 140 857 23 140 B34 126 852
Cl24. Pohledavky - ostani a0 33771 - 23 348 5425 5088
CAI.2.4 3. |Stat - dafiowe pohledavky kb 3oea it 3682
Cll.2.4 4, |Kratkodobé poskytnuté zalohy 32 320 el 5
C1.2.4.5. |Dohadné Gty aktivni 33 1x2 122 274
CAI.2.4.6. [Jiné pohledavicy 4 28120 - 28 346 TT4 54
CIV. Penéini prostiedky 35 13582 13 582 5045
Cv1 Penéini prostfedky v pokladné 36 118 116 233
Cva Penéini prostfedky na Uétech ar 13476 13476 4812
D. Casové rozlifeni aktiv 28 1454 1454 579
DA Naklady pristich cbdobi 38 5 504 578
D3 Prijmy pristich obdobi 40 950 250




TBU in Zlin, Faculty of Humanities

54

Oznac PASIVA fad Bézné Minulé
ucetni ucetni
obdobi obdaobi

a +] G il ]
PASIA CELKEM 41 360 37T 363 360
A Vlastni kapital 42 162 487 153 41
Al Zakladni kapita 43 &0 050 50 050
Al Zakladni kapita 44 50 050 50 050
AL AZio a kapitalové fondy 45 7374 5114
AllLZ. Kapitalove fondy 45 T 374 5114
ANlZ2Z Ocefiovaci rozdily z pfecensni majethu a zévazhd (+-) 47 7374 5118
Al Fomdy ze zisku 48 10010 10 @10
AL, Ostatni rezermni fondy 40 10010 10 M0
AV Vysledek hospodafeni minulych let (+-) 50 8B 222 76312
AV Merozdéleny zisk minulych let 51 BB 222 a2

AW, Vysledek hospodareni bEZného Uéetnivo obdobi (+-) 52 6331 11 310

B.+C. Cizi zdroje a3 198 090 209 959

B. Rezervy a4 3 563 113

B2 Rezerva na daf z pfijmi 55 831

B4. Ostatni rezeney 56 2932 113

C. Zavazky aT 194 527 2049 848

[ MHouhodobe zavazky 58 4 330 485

ClE OdloZeny danovy zavazek 50 4330 4852
ca Kratkodobe zavazky 60 feD1a7 204 904
clz Zavazky k (verowym institucim 61 123821 122 9484
CIL3 Kratkodobe prijaté zalohy 62 1913
Cli4 Zavazky z cbchodnich vetaht 63 42831 33278
Clie Zavazky ostatni 64 23445 28732
Clle3 Favazky k zamésmancim 65 33T 2178
Clle4 Zavazky ze socialnihe zaberpefeni a zdravoiniho pojisténi 66 2125 2020
Cll&s Stat - danfowe zavazky a dotace 67 Ll 82
CILBG Dohadné GEty pasivmi 6B 16042 23 830
CIET Jing zavazky alt] 341 302
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APPENDIX 2: INCOME STATEMENT 2016

VIL

(in thousands of CZK)

Dznad VYKAZ ZISKU A ZTRATY d. | Béine Minulé
ucetni ucetni
obdobi obdobi

a b c i 2

I Triby z prodeje wyrobkd a sluZeb 1 48D 532 521 475

Il Triby =3 prodej zho® 2 325 048 214 881

A, Wykonowa spoffeba 3 712713 TEE 170

A1 Maklady wynalofens na prodang zhodi 4 283 545 M7
A2 Spotreba materialu a enengie 5 258135 407 958
A SluZby a 71033 76 484
B. Zména stawu zasob viastni Sinnosti (1) 7 2322 - 10 250
D. COzobni nakiady g T8 244 72029
D.1. Mzdové niklady 2 58 530 53 308
D.Z :Ija:l::: na socialni zabezpeteni, zdravotni pojisteni a ostatni 10 0 707 12133
D21, Maklady na socialni zabezpedeni a adravomni pojisténi 11 19 711 18 442
D22 Ostatni naklady 12 298 g

E. Upravy hodnot v provozni oblast 13 6348 833
E1 ;I:E:;ihm"m dlouhodobeho nehmotneho a hmotneho 14 £ a4 5330
E14 ;izzmh_c;';;lnuhndcbe"n nehmotneho a hmotneho 5 5 a1q £330

2 Upravy hodnot zisob 16 1233 -3
E.3 Upravy hodnot pohled dvek 7 - 325 - 1430
l Oistatni provoeni wnosy B 3883 4 597
.1 Trby z prodaného diouhodobeho majetku 18 385 51
.2 Trby z prodaného materialu 20 352 247
1.3 Jine provoani vynosy 21 2850 4194

F. Ostatni provozni naklady ] To7a 3728
F.3. Diané a poplatky 23 733 a3
Fa. .;R;,,i.;?” provozni oblast a komplexni naklady pristich 74 3818 . 243
5. Jiné provoani naklady 25 3529 3344

' Provozni wisledek hospodafeni (+-) 25 10 610 1T 228
WI. Vynosowe troky a podobné wynosy T 3 ey
Vi.Z Ostatni vynosowé Oroky a podobné wynosy 28 3 ey
J. Makladowe Uroky a podobné naklady b 1532 1 844
J.2 Ostatni nakladové (roky a podobné naklady 20 1532 1844

WVII. O=tatni finanéni vynosy b 3428 6339

K. Ostatni finanéni naklady 32 3583 7 880

: Financni vysledek hospodareni 33 -1 655 -2 964

" Visledek hospodareni pfed zdanénim {+1) 24 8944 14 264

L. Dian z prijmi a5 2113 2 954

L.1. Dian z pfijmi splaina k] 2735 1083
L2 Dian z pfijmi odloZend (+-) 7 - 822 a71

= Vysledek hospodareni po zdanéni [+1-} 38 683 11 310

Visledek hospodareni za idetni obdobi [+1) 23 & 831 11 310

. Cisty obrat za Géetniobdobi =L+ I # 1L+ V. + V_+ VL. + 40 833 747 847 593
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APPENDIX 3: BALANCE SHEET 2017

(in thousands of CZK)
Oznad AKTIVA .
fad Biné tiEetni obdobi Hinué uestnd
Brutto Korekce Netto Hetto
a b c 1 2 3 <
AKTIVA CELKEM 1 14928 -17T2 153 M2TTS 360 577
Dlouhodoby majetek 2 231 312 - 138 850 92 562 B0 580
Bl Dhouhodoby nehmotny majetek 3 43480 -43312 148 131
B.l2. Ocenitelna prava B 41347 -41 327 20 23
Bl2.1. Software 5 1852 -1 632 20 23
Bl22 Oistatni coenitelnd prava 8 30825 - 39 605
B.l4. Ostatni diouhodoby nehmotry majetek 7 2113 - 1885 128 158
BlL Dhouhodoby hmotny majetek a 164 538 - 95 638 G643 200 6T 457
B.l1. Pozemky a staviby 9 TB 788 - 45223 33 565 35 559
BUL1.1. Pozemky 10 2 042 2842 2642
BL1.2. Stavby 1 TG 146 - 45223 30823 a2 ey
B2 Hmotné movité veci a jejich soubory 12 63068 -41273 21726 22704
B4 Ostatni diouhodoby hmotny majetek 13 16 407 -0 142 7 285 7779
B.ll4.3. Jiny diouhodoby hmotny majetek 14 16 407 -9 142 T 285 TT78
O o el R e sz e
BILS.1. Poskytnuté zalohy na dlcuhodoby hmotny majetek 16 543 5423 G4
BILS.2. MNedokenéeny dlouhodoby hmotny majetek 17 781 781 Y
B Dhouhodoby finanéni majetek 18 23514 23514 2 D42
B.IL3. Podily - podstatmy viiv 18 23514 23514 2 D42
C. Obézna aktiva 20 282978 - 33 203 243773 268 543
CL Zasoby 21 135 885 -4 BE5 131 030 108 692
Cl.1. Material 22 TG0z -2410 73818 58213
Cl2 Medokonéena vyroba a polotovary 23 174 174 5
Cla. yrobky a zbodi 24 50 982 -2445 57 237 48815
Cl31.  |Wirouky 25 10 000 212 18788 23420
Cl3z2 Zhaozi 26 40 882 -2233 33440 25405
ca Pohledavky 27 142 550 -23 M8 114 202 146 259
cla. Kratkodobé pohledavky 28 142 550 -23 M8 114 202 146 259
ch2i Pohledavky z obehodnich vatahi 8 2512 2 112 510 140 B34
C.l.2.4. Pohledavky - ostatni 30 30 038 - 28 M6 1882 5425
C1.2.4.3. |Stat - danoveé pohledavky 3 2609
Cll.2.4 4. |Kratkodobé poskytnuté zalohy 32 a12 618 830
Cl1.2.4 5. |Dohadné GSty aktivni 33 310 310 122
CI1.2.4.6. |Jiné pohledaviy 4 28108 - 28 M6 TE3 T4
C.IV. Penéini prostiedky 35 4 543 4543 13 582
Cvt. Penéini prostiedky v pokladné 36 128 128 118
Cv2 PenéZni prostiedky na Gétech a7 4415 4415 13478
D. Casové rozliseni aktiv 38 438 438 1454
D1 Naklady pFistich obdobi 3g 428 428 5
D.3 Pijmy pfistich obdobi 40 950
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Omnac PASIVA rad Bézna Minulé

aéetni uéetni

obdobi obdobi

a b c ki il

PASINA CELKEM 41 M2 TS 360 57T
A Viastni kapital 42 167 941 162 487
Al Zakladni kapit3 43 &0 050 &0 050
Al Zakladni kapita 44 50 050 50 050
AL Afio a kapitalové fondy 45 T 348 7 374
AL, Kapitalowe fondy 46 T 9445 T34
All22 Cicefovac rozdily z pfecensni majetku a zawazki (+-) 47 7 045 T 74
Al Fondy ze zisku 48 10 01D 10 010
Al Ostatni rezermi fondy 40 10 01D 10 010
AV ysledek hospodareni minulych let [+5-) 50 25053 &8 222
AlvA Merozdéleny zisk minulych let 51 85053 &8 222
AN, Visledek hospodafeni B2Znéhe O&etniho cbdobi (+/-) b2 4382 & 831
B.+C. Cizi zdroje 33 174 834 158 030
B. Rezervy a4 2834 3 563
= Rezerva na dan z pfijm 55 550 A3
B4. Ostatni rezervy ] 2275 2832
C. Zavazky 3T 172 000 184 527
CL Dlouhodobe zawazky 58 5 542 4 330
C18. CdloZeny danovy zavazek 5@ 5542 4330
|| Kratkodobe zavazky G0 66 458 180 187
Cli2 Zavazky k UvErowym institucim 1 25 a4 123 a1
Cll4 Zavazky z obchodnich wziahl 2 48573 42831
CILB Zavazky ostatni 63 22815 23445
Cle3s Zavazky k zamestnancam fi4 4274 33n
Cle4 Zavazky ze socialniho zaberpedeni a zdravotniho pojisténi f5 275D 2125
Cles Stat - danove zavazky a dotace 66 2298 il
ClL.B6 Dohadng G6Sty pasivni &7 13304 g 042
C.I.8TF Jing zavazky GE 191 1
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APPENDIX 4: INCOME STATEMENT 2017

(in thousands of CZK)

Oznad VIKAZ ZISKU A ZTRATY fid. | Béné Minulé
ucetni ucetni
obdobi obdobi

a b [ 1 2

I Triby z prodeje wyroblkod a sluZeb 1 451 822 480 842

Il Triby za prodej zhodi 2 235 031 325 048

A ykonova spotfeba 3 685 201 713713

A1 Maklady vynaloZené na prodand zhodi 281718 283545
AZ Spotfeba materidlu a enargis 5 326 958 350135
A3 Sluzby 8 &7 @18 71033
Zména stawu zasob viasmi innosti (-] 7 5071 23

Osobni naklady 8 81341 79 248

D.1. Mzdowé naklady g 5 gog 58 539
0.2 ::'?El:;; na socidlni zabezpeten], zdravotni pojisteni a ostatni 10 1 875 0707
D21, Maklady na socidlni zabezpefeni a adravommi pojisténi 11 20 497 1271
D22 Ostatni naklady i2 1173 0aa

E. (Ipravy hodnaot v provoeni oblast 13 7130 G349
) ;pa;z:;ihcc not diouhodobého nehmiotného a hmotnéhe 14 5 488 5 441
E11 ;pa;z:;ih_c:vﬁéc louhodobeho nehmotneho a hmotneho 15 5 & 5 dd1

E2 (pravy hodnot zidsob 16 1 885 1232
E3. Upravy hodnot pohledavek T - M - 375
] Ostatni provozni wnosy 18 7100 3833
II.1 Tréby z prodaného dlouhodobého majetku 19 3 338
.2 Tréby z prodaného materialu 20 253 352
1.3 Jiné provozni vynosy b 6844 2050

F. Ostatni provozni naklady 22 4452 7078
F.3. Dané a poplatky 23 345 733
= S;;::iryu provozni oblasti a komplexni naklady pristich 24 - 5T 2810
5. Jiné provozni naklady 25 4 2a4 3526

* Provezni visledek hospodateni (+1) 26 10 568 10 610
I, Vynosové Groky a podobné vynosy ) 3
V12 Ostatni vynosove Oroky a podobné wnosy 28 3
J. Makladove Oroky a podobné nakiady 28 1344 1532
J2 Ostatni nakladové Uroky a podobné naklady 0 1344 1532

WL Ostatni finanéni wynosy EL 43810 3424

K. Ostatni finanéni naklady 3z 5183 3 583

' Finanéni vysledek hospodareni 33 -1 697 -1 666

- Vysledek hospodareni pfed zdanénim {+/-) 34 8am 8944

L. Daf z pfijmi 5 2089 2113

L1 Daf z pfijmi splatna k] 27T 2735
L2 Dan z pfijmd odlofend (+-) a7 1212 - 622

= Vysledek hospodafeni po zdanéni (+1-) 38 4 832 6 831

- Vysledek hospodareni za Océetni obdobi (+1-) 38 4 832 6 831

. frlulsty obrat za Géetni obdobi =L + L+ L+ V. + V. + VL + a0 799 653 833 747
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APPENDIX 5: BALANCE SHEET 2018

(in thousands of CZK)
e ARTIVA Fad. B&Zné iiGetni obdobi Minulé detni
Brutto Korekee Netto MNetto
a b c 1 2 3 4
AKTIVA CELKEM 1 346 339 - 173 387 AT0 952 342775
3 Stala aktiva 2 241 296 -144 794 96 502 92 562
B Dicuhodoby nehmatny majetek 3 47 B35 -42 720 115 148
Bl2. Oecenitelna prava 4 40722 - 40 705 17 20
Bl2.1. Software 5 1027 -1010 17 20
Bl122 Ostamni ocenitelnd prava ] 39 605 - 30895
B4 Ostami diouhodoby nehmotny majetek 7 2113 -2M5 28 128
B.Il. Douhodoby hmotvy majetek B 185712 - 102 074 83838 G4 800
BIL1 Pozemky a stavby bl 74 TER - 47 ga4 31104 33 5G5S
BUL1.1. Pozemky 10 2642 2 042 2642
BL1.2. Stavby 1 7o 146 - 47 da4 2B 462 30823
B2 Hmotné movité véci a jejich soubory 12 33 807 -44733 44 164 21 706
BlL4. Ostamni diouhodoby hmotny majetek 13 16 407 -9 as7 6 750 T 285
B.ll4.3. Jiny dlouhodeby hmotny majetek 14 16 407 - as7 6 750 T 285
BULS. E:;;{';"#sfﬂ z:‘;:m:dim:‘:;mbi; m;maje"“ = 15 1620 1620 B 274
BILS.1. Poskyinuté zalohy na dlouhodoby hmotny majetek 18 Bos 905 5403
BILS.2. Nedokonéeny diouhodoby hmotny majetek 17 715 715 781
B Douhodoby finanéni majetek 18 12 748 12748 23514
B2, Podily - podstatny wiiv 19 12 748 12748 23514
C. ObéZna aktiva 20 304 481 - 30 593 T3 HEBI 249775
Cl. Zasoby 21 157 202 -1327 155 875 131 030
Cl1 Materi3 2 73303 - Q42 T2451 T3 618
clz Nedokonéena vyroba a polotovary 23 217 7 174
Cla Wyrobky a zbodi 24 83 5B2 - 385 B3 207 57 237
C.L3.1. Wyrobky 25 20 602 - 152 26 450 13 TBB
C.l3.2 ZhoFi 20 5@ 8B0 - 233 56 TET 33 440
CL Pohledaviy 27 148 372 - 2B 268 117 106 114 202
cl2. Kratkodobs pohledaviy 23 148 372 - 2B 264 117 106 114 202
caz.a. Pohledaviy z obchodnich vatahi 29 113 465 - 820 115 545 112 510
C.l24. Pohledaviy - ostatni a0 29 807 - 28 348 1 581 1 682
Cl1.2 4.3 |Stat - dafiove pohledavky H 451 451
Cll.2 4.4 |Kratkodobeé poskytnuté zalohy 32 255 255 618
Cl1.2 4.5 |Dohadné Géty aktvni 33 310
Cl1.2 4.8 [Jiné pohledaviy 4 29201 - 2B 348 855 T63
CIV. Penézni prostredky a5 BoT a7 4 543
c Penézni prostredky v pokladné 38 27 273 128
cn2 PenéZni prostfedky na Uétech 37 634 824 4415
: Casové rozlifeni aktiv 38 562 562 438
D.i. Maklady pristich obdobi 30 5E2 582 438
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Oznat PASIVA rad E?ine Hlnule

acetni ucetni

obdobi obdobi

3 b C 5 i

PASINA CELKEM 40 AT0 952 342 TTS
A Vlastni kapital 41 173 604 16T 341
Al Zakladni kapital 42 50 050 50 Q50
Al Zakladni kapit3 43 50 050 50 @50
AL AZig 3 kapitilovs fondy 44 2810 7 046
A2 Kapitabove fondy 45 -2818 T 846
All22 Ocefovaci rozdily z pfecenéni majetku a zavazh [ #1~) 46 -2818 7346
AL Fondy ze zisku 47 10 01D 10010
A, Cistatni rezenmi fondy 48 10 01D 10010
A Vysledek hospodafeni minulych let [+-) 40 BT 457 85 053
AN Merozdéleny zisk nebo neuhrazena zirata minukych let (+-) 50 BT 457 g5 053
AV, Wysledek hospodareni bE2neho Oéetniho cbdobi (+1-) 51 28 D8 4 gBD
B.+C. Cizi zdroje a2 197 348 174 834
B Rezervy 53 2834
B2 Rererva na dan z pfijmd 54 EEQ
B4, Ostatni rezensy 55 823 2 X75
C. Zavazky a6 196 325 172 000
L Dlouhodobé zavaziky 57 f s 5 542
C.lE. Odlozeny danovy zavazek 58 £ (028 5 E42
CAL Kratkodobé zavaziy 50 100 427 166 458
C.L2Z. Zavazky k Uvérowym mstitucim &0 116 520 A5 D4
C.l.4. Favazky z obchaodnich vztahl i1 62 B16 48 570
C.llg. Zavazky ostatni g2 21 021 22 815
Cl.83. Zavazky k zaméstnancim B3 4 455 4 174
Clla4. Zavazky ze socialnino zabezpedeni a zdravotniho pofisténi £4 2980 2750
C.IL3.5. Stat- danowe zavazky a dotace 65 1288 2 206
ClL.a8. Dohadne Goty pasivni B6 11 221 13 204
ClLa7. Jing zavazky g7 457 181
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APPENDIX 6: INCOME STATEMENT 2018

(in thousands of CZK)

Cznac. VYHAZ ZISKU A FTRATY rad Ili-?:':né: F!linulél-
ucetni ucetni
obdobi obdobi

a b C i 2

l. Triby z prodeje virobkl a shifeb 482 650 451 B22

Il Triby za prode) zbodi 2 384 6BT 335 |31

A Vykonovs spotfeba 3 742 105 B8 281

Al Maklady wnalofené na prodane zhoZi 4 330 D6B 281 718
AZ Spotreba materialu a energie 5 337 553 328 @59
A Shuzty G G5 484 g7 618
B. Zména stavu zasol vlasini Gnnosti (+-) 7 -7 645 5071
Csobni naklady 8 24 B4 31 31
D1 Mzdowe naklady 2 g2 507 54 668
03 ::;ﬁ na socialni zabezpecani, 2dravotni pojisten] a ostatml 10 37 T H 675
b2, Maklady na socizlni zabezpedeni a zdravoini pojisténi 1 21 532 20 487
D22 Crstatni naklady 12 B15 1178
E. Dprawhc-dnntu provozni cblast 13 4012 7130
Ef. :.:gz;yuh:dnnt diouhodobeho nehmotneho a hmotneho 14 8 622 5 486
E14 qu_gz;y“"_ﬂ:tédluuhmmehn nehmotneho a hmotneho 15 & 22 5 456
EZ2. Llpraw hodnot zisob 18 -3 528 1 6B5
E3. Llpravy hodnot pohledavek 17 B1B -
. Ostatni provozni wjnosy 18 1704 7100
1.1 Triby z prodaného diouhodobého majetiu 19 1 3
.2 Triby z prodaného matesialu 20 253 253
.3 Jiné provoeni vynosy | 1540 G B4
F. Ostatni provozni naklady 2 1082 4452
F.3 Dané a poplatky 23 B B45
Fa E:;ﬁg?y v prowozni oblast a komplexni naklady pristich 24 - 1452 - BAT
F5 Jiné provoeni naklady 25 2573 4 264
+ Provozni visledek hospodareni (+-) 26 73 823 10 568
V. Vynosy z ostatniho dicuhodobeho finanéniho majetku 7 12 463
V2. Ostatni wynosy = ostaniho douhodobého finanéniho majetky | 23 12 463
. Makladows droky 3 podobné naklady 29 2 046 1344
J.2 Ostatni nakladove droky a podobné naklady i 2 D46 1344

Il Ostatni finandni vynosy H 4071 4 810

K. Orstatni finanéni naklady 32 8071 5163

* Finanéni vysledek hospodareni 3 8417 -1 637

" Vysledek hospodareni pred zdanénim [+1-) 34 32 240 8 874

L. Dari z prjmu 35 3334 3089

L1. Diaf z pfijmil splana an 277 277
L2 Daf z phjmil odlofena (+-) v 556 1212

= Vijsledek hospodareni po zdanéni (+-) 38 29 906 4882

Vysledek hospodareni za Géetni obdobi (#1-) 19 28 906 4882

- frlils-‘tinhtatt'léeminb:lnhi=l_+ll.|-ll+l1|r.+1|r_+'l.|"l_+ - 465 665 —
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APPENDIX 7: BALANCE SHEET 2019
(in thousands of CZK)

B&Ené

téetni obdobi

Minulé
. obdobi
2018

Brutto

Korekce

Netto

Netto

[ AKTIVA CELKEM

498 051

315443

370 952

| POHLEDAVKY ZA UPSANY ZAKLADNI KAPITAL

| STALA AKTIVA

245126

151872

93 254

96 502

o

[

Dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek

42 886

42 753

115

Nehmoing vysledky vyvoje

Ocenitelna prava

40722

-40 708

14

Software

1027

-1013

14

. | Ostatni ocenitelna prava

30 685

-39 895

Goodwill

Ostatni dlouhodoby nehmotny majetek

-2 045

o8

Paoskytnuté zilohy na dlcuhodoby nehmotny majetek
a nedokonéeny diouhodoby nehmotny majstek

1. | Poskytnuté zalohy na diouhodoby nehmotny majetek

r

Nedokenéeny dlouhodoby nehmatny majetek

o

Dlouhedoby hmotny majetek

192 163

-108 118

33 044

83638

Pozemky a stavby

70 124

-50 149

28 975

31104

Pozemky

2642

2642

2642

Stavby

76 482

-50 140

26333

28 462

Hmaotné maovité wéci a jejich soubory

90 981

-48 798

42 183

44 165

Ocefiovaci rozdil k nabytému majetku

Ostatni dlouhodoby hmotny majetek

16 406

-10 172

6749

1. | Péstitelské celky trvaljch porostl

w

Dospéla zvifata a jejich skupiny

. | Jiny diouhodoby hmotny majetek

16 406

110 172

8234

6749

Poskyinuté zalohy na dlcuhodoby hmotny majetek a
nedokonéeny dicuhodoby hmotny majetek

5 652

5 652

1620

1. | Poskytnuté zalohy na dicuhcdoby hmaotny majetek

r

3852

3852

205

Nedokonéeny diouhodoby hmotny majetek

1300

1 800

715

B.
B.

Sm o b W R

Dlouhodoby finanéni majetek

10 077

10 077

12749

Podily - ovladana nebo oviddajici czoba

Zaplijéky a Gvéry - oviddana nebo oviadajici osoba

Podily - podstatry viiv

10 077

10077

12749

Zapljiky a (véry - podstatny viiv

Ostatni dlouhodobé cenné papiry a podily

Zapljiky a dvéry - ostatni

Ostatni dlouhodoby finanéni majetek

1. | Jiny diouhodoby finanéni majetek

8]

Poskyinuté zilohy na diouhodoby finanéni majetek

| oBEZNA AKTIVA

-30 736

221 369 |

273 888

1. | Vyrobky

Zasoby

113 886

-2335

111 551

155 875

Material

55 319

-088

54 331

72451

Nedokonéena vyroba a polotovary

46

46

217

Wyrobky a zbodi

58 521

-1347

57 174

83 207

24 023

23468

26 450

2. | Zbodi

34 408

-7e3

33 705

58 757

Miada a ostatni zvifata a jefich skupiny

Poskytnuté zilohy na zasoby

C.
C.

1
2
3. | Pohledavky - podstatry viiv
4
5.

Pohledavky

136 252

-28 401

107 851

117 108

Diouhodobé pohledavky

Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahl

Pohledavky - ovladana nebo ovlddajici osoba

Odlofend dafiovs pohledivka

Pohledavky ostatni

1. | Pohledavky za spoleéniky

-2. | Dlouhodobe poskyinuté zalohy

-3. | Dohadné Géty aktivni

5.4. | Jiné pohledavky

1
2
3. | Pohledavky - podstatry viiv
4

Kratkodobé pohledaviy

136 252

-28 401

107 851

117 108

Pohledavky z obchodnich vztahi

105 228

-55

105173

115 545

Pohledavky - ovladana nebo ovlddajici osoba

Pohledavky - ostatni

31024

-28 346

2878

1561

1. | Pohledavky za spolegniky

2. | Socidlni zabezpefeni a zdravotni pojifténi

-3. | Stit - darfiové pohledaviy

1124

1124

451

4.4. | Kratkodobé poskytnuté zalohy

4
4.

235

235

5. | Dohadné Géty aktivni

@

800

800

8. | Jiné pohledaviy

28775

-28 346

428

Kratkodoby finanéni majetek

Podily - ovladana nebo ovladajici osoba

Ostatni kratkodoby finanéni majetek

PenéZni prostiedky

1 967

1967

Penééni prostiedky v pokladné

3rz

3rz

273

Penééni prostiedky na Gétech

1505

1585

634

Casové rozlideni aktiv

820

820

Naklady pfiftich obdobi

820

820

562

Komplexni naklady piistich obdobi

Piijmy pfistich obdobi
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Stav v béznem Stav v minulém
iaéetnim obdobi Géetnim obdobi 2018
| PASIVA CELKEM 315 443 370 952
A | vLASTHI KAPITAL 180 752 173 604
A Zakladni kapital 50 050 50 050
Al 1. Zakladni kapital 50 D50 50 050
2. Vlasini podily [-)
3. Zmény zikladnihe kapitdlu
Al Aic a kapitilové fondy 5 401 2810
AL Afio
2 Kapitdlove fondy -5 481 -2 818
1. | Ostatni kapitilove fondy
2. | Ocefovaci rozdily z pfecenéni majetku a zavazhki (+-) -5481 -2819
Ocefiovaci rozdily z pfecenéni pfi pfeménach obchodnich
3. | korporaci (+5-)
4. | Roadily z pfemén obchodnich kemporaci (+-)
5. | Roadily z ocenéni pfi preménach obchednich korporaci (+/-)
AL Fondy ze zisku 10 010 10 010
AL 1. Ostatni rezervni fondy 10 010 10 010
2. Statutdmi a ostatni fondy
AV Vysledek hospodafeni minulych let {+/-) 112 381 &7 457
.1 MNerozdéleny zisk nebo neuhrazena ztrata minubych let (+/-) 112 381 &7 457
2. Jiny vysledek hospodafeni minulych let [(+-)
AV | visledek hospodateni biného Gietniho obdobi (+1-) 13 702 | 28 006
A WL | Rozhodnute o zalohowvé vyplaté podilu na zisku (- [1] | 0
B.+C | cizizoroue 134 691 | 197 348
B. Rezervy 130 823
B. 1. Rezerva na dichody a podobné zivazky
2. Rezerva na dafi z pfijmd
3. Rezervy podle zvidStnich pravnich predpisy
4. Ostatni rezenvy 130 823
C. Zavazky 134 581 196 535
C. L Dlouhodobé zavazky 55833 6 088
1. Vydané diuhopisy
1. | Vyménitelné diuhopisy
2. | Ostatni diuhopisy
2 Zavazky k dverovym institucim
3 Dilouhodobé piijaté =ilohy
4. Zavazky z obchodnich vztahll
5. Dlouhodobé sménky k Ghradé
8. Zavazky - ovliddana nebo owladajici osoba
7. Zavazky - podstatny viiv
8 OdicZeny dafiovy zavazek 6 833 6 008
9. Zavazky - ostatni
1. | Zawazky ke spoleénikim
2. | Dohadné Oty pasivni
3. | Jiné zavazky
cC. Kratkodobé zavazky 127 728 180 427
1. Vydané diuhopisy
1. | Vyménitelné diuhopisy
2. | Ostatni diuhopisy
2 Zavazky k dverovym institucim 81 332 116 520
3 Kritkodobé prijaté zalohy
4. Zavazky z obchodnich vztahll 40 233 52 818
5. Kratkodobé sménky k Uhradé
6. Zavazky - ovladana nebo ovladajici osoba
7. Zavazky - podstatny viiv
8. Zavazky - ostatni 26 182 21 091
1. | Zawazky ke spoleénikim
2. | Kritkodobé finanéni vypomoci
3. | Zawvazky k zaméstnancim 3742 4 455
4. | Zavazky ze socidlniho zaberzpefeni a zdravatniho pojisténi 2442 2 980
5. | 5tat - dafové zavazky a dotace T8 1208
&. | Dehadné Oéty pasivni 18 @78 11 @21
7. | Jiné zavazky 202 457
D. Casové rozlifeni pasiv 4] 4]
D. 1. Wydaje pfistich obdobi
2 Wynosy pfistich cbdobi
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APPENDIX 8: INCOME STATEMENT 2019

(in thousands of CZK)

Stav v béEném Stav v minulém
Géetnim obdobi uéetnim obdobi 2018
- | Trzby z prodeje vyrobkl a slufeb 417 748 482 &51
I, _ | Tréby za prodej zhodi 381 500 | 384 BT
A Vykonova spotfeba 686 554 742 105
A Maklady vynaloZens na prodané zbodi 320 549 330 D62
AZ Spotfeba materidlu & energie 207 475 337 553
Al Sluzby 88 530 65 484
B. - | Zména stavu zisob viastni éinnosti (+/-) 3041 l -7 645
C. - | Aktivace [ o] [
D. Osobni naklady 84 633 84 554
Mzdové naklady 82 410 62 507
D2 Maklady na socidlni zabezpedeni, zdravotni poji 22333 2247
D.2.1. | Maklady na socidlni zabezpeéeni a zdravotni 22 177 21 532
D.2.2. | Ostatni naklady 48 815
E. pr ravy hodnot v provozni oblasti 7 851 402
E.1. Upravy hodnot diouhadobého nehmotného a hmotného majetku 7 508 6 622
E.1.1. | Upravy hodnot dlouhodobého nehmatného a hmotného majetku - frvalé 7 508 8 622
E1.2 | Upravy hodnot diouhodobého nehmotného a hmetnéha majetku - dodasné
Ez Upravy hodnat zisab 1008 3528
E3. \'Jgrag hodnot pohledavek -868 218
. Ostatni provozni vynosy 3832 1794
IR Tréby z prodaného diouhodobého majetku 1
n.2. Trzby z prodaneho materialu 159 253
L3, Jing provazni wynosy 3872 1540
F. Ostatni provozni naklady 4308 1882
F.1. Zistatkova cena prodaného diouhodobého majetku
F.2 Prodany material
F.a Dané a poplatky 055 a61
F4. Rezervy v provozni oblasti a komplexni naklady pristich obdobi -303 -1.452
F.5. Jiné provazni naklady 4 138 2573
* - | Provozni vysledek hospodafeni (+/-) 16 812 [ 23 823
. Vynosy z dlouhodobého finanéniho majetku - podily 3972 12 483
AL ynosy z pedill - ovlddana nebo oviidajici csoba 3872 12483
.2 Ostatni vynosy = podill
G. - | Naklady vynalezené na prodané podily o a
W. Vynosy z ostatniho dlouhodobéhe finanénihe majethu o a
\ynosy z ostaintho dlouhodobého finanénihe majetku - ovliadana nebo
AR ovlddajici osoba
V.2 Ostatni vinosy z ostatnihe diouhodobého finanénine majetku
H. - | Niklady souvisejici 5 ostatnim dlouhodobym finanénim majethem o l a
VI Vynosove uroky a podobne wynosy 1 [i]
VI ynosove lroky a podobné vynosy - oviddana nebo ovladajici osoba
V.2 Ostatni vynosove droky a podobné vinosy 1
I - | Upravy hednot a rezervy ve finanéni oblasti o ]
J Nakladowé Groky a podobné naklady 2230 2048
Makladowvé Uroky a podobné naklady - ovladana nebo oviddajici osoha
J.2 Ostatni nakladove troky a podobné naklady 2230 2 048
VI - | Ostatni finanéni vynosy 2240 | 4071
K - | ostatni finangni nikiady 4488 8071
- | Finanéni vysledek hospodareni (+/-) -505 I 8417
= - [ Vysledek hospodateni pred zdanénim f+-) 16 307 | 32240
L. Daf z pfijmu 2515 3334
L1 Daan z pfijmu splaina 1780 2778
L2 Dan z pfijmu odloZena (+-) 735 558
** - | ¥ysledek hospodareni po zdanéni (+/-) 13 782 I 28 806
M. - | Pfevod podilu na vysledku hospodafeni spoleénikim (+/-) o I a
il - | vysledek hospodafeni za Géetni obdobi (+-) 13 792 | 28 806
* - | Cisty obrat za ietni obdobi 208 302 | BES BB5




